SERVICEMASTER CO, LLC Form 10-Q May 02, 2014 Table of Contents

UNITED STATE	S
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE	E COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549	_
FORM 10-Q	
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(ACT OF 1934	d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
For the quarterly period ended March	31, 2014
or	
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 ACT OF 1934	5(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
For the transition period from	to
Commission file number 1-1476	2

# THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

90-1036521

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

(IRS Employer Identification No.)

860 Ridge Lake Boulevard, Memphis, Tennessee 38120

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

901-597-1400

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes o No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer, and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o

Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer x (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No x

The registrant is a privately held limited liability company and its membership interests are not publicly traded. At May 2, 2014, all of the registrant s membership interests were owned by CDRSVM Holding, LLC.

The ServiceMaster Company, LLC is not required to file this Quarterly Report on Fois doing so on a voluntary basis.	orm 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange Commission and

## Table of Contents

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page No.
Part I. Financial Information	
Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)	
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013	3
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013	4
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013	5
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	6
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	28
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	42
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	43
Part II. Other Information	43
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	43
Item 1A. Risk Factors	43
Item 6. Exhibits	53
Signature	55

## Table of Contents

#### PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

## ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC

## **Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)**

(In millions)

	Three mont March			
	2014	ŕ	2013	
Operating Revenue	\$ 533	\$		514
Cost of services rendered and products sold	288			270
Selling and administrative expenses	151			158
Amortization expense	13			13
Impairment of software and other related costs	48			
Restructuring charges	5			3
Interest expense	61			60
Interest and net investment income	(6)			(2)
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes	(27)			12
(Benefit) Provision for income taxes	(9)			6
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations	(18)			6
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(95)			(29)
Net Loss	\$ (113)	\$		(23)
Total Comprehensive Loss	\$ (116)	\$		(20)

## Table of Contents

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC

## **Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Unaudited)**

(In millions)

	M	As of larch 31, 2014	As of December 31, 2013
Assets:			
Current Assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	421 \$	476
Marketable securities		23	27
Receivables, less allowances of \$25 and \$26, respectively		393	394
Inventories		38	39
Prepaid expenses and other assets		57	56
Deferred customer acquisition costs		28	30
Deferred taxes		107	107
Assets of discontinued operations			76
Total Current Assets		1,067	1,205
Property and Equipment:			
At cost		345	381
Less: accumulated depreciation		(211)	(204)
Net Property and Equipment		134	177
Other Assets:			
Goodwill		2,055	2,018
Intangible assets, primarily trade names, service marks and trademarks, net		1,729	1,721
Notes receivable		37	37
Long-term marketable securities		90	122
Other assets		51	49
Debt issuance costs		38	41
Assets of discontinued operations			542
Total Assets	\$	5,201 \$	5,912
Liabilities and Shareholder s (Deficit) Equity:			
Current Liabilities:			
Accounts payable	\$	92 \$	92
Accrued liabilities:			
Payroll and related expenses		54	70
Self-insured claims and related expenses		86	78
Accrued interest payable		16	51
Other		55	55
Deferred revenue		487	448
Liabilities of discontinued operations		7	139
Current portion of long-term debt		41	39
Total Current Liabilities		838	972
Long-Term Debt		3,863	3,867
Other Long-Term Liabilities:			
Deferred taxes		696	690
Liabilities of discontinued operations			162

Other long-term obligations, primarily self-insured claims	146	169
	842	1,021
Total Other Long-Term Liabilities	042	1,021
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 4)		
Shareholder s (Deficit) Equity:		
Membership Interest		
Additional paid-in capital	1,477	1,475
Retained deficit	(1,821)	(1,430)
Accumulated other comprehensive income	2	7
Total Shareholder s (Deficit) Equity	(342)	52
Total Liabilities and Shareholder s (Deficit) Equity	\$ 5,201 \$	5,912

## Table of Contents

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC

## **Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)**

(In millions)

			nths ended		
	2014	.=.	Φ.	2013	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period	\$	476	\$		412
Cash Flows from Operating Activities from Continuing Operations:					
Net Loss		(113)			(23)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided from operating activities:		(113)			(23)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes		95			29
Depreciation expense		12			12
Amortization expense		13			13
Amortization expense  Amortization of debt issuance costs		2			2
Impairment of software and other related costs		48			2
Deferred income tax provision		(6)			8
Stock-based compensation expense		1			1
Restructuring charges		5			3
Cash payments related to restructuring charges		(3)			(4)
Change in working capital, net of acquisitions:		(3)			(1)
Current income taxes		(5)			(4)
Receivables		13			15
Inventories and other current assets		13			(16)
Accounts payable		6			14
Deferred revenue		17			10
Accrued liabilities		(57)			(37)
Other, net		(7)			(37)
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities from Continuing Operations		21			23
The Cubit Frontace from operating from the ordinary operations		21			23
Cash Flows from Investing Activities from Continuing Operations:					
Property additions		(14)			(9)
Other business acquisitions, net of cash acquired		(41)			(3)
Notes receivable, financial investments and securities, net		38			(4)
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities from Continuing Operations		(17)			(16)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities from Continuing Operations:					
Borrowings of debt					1
Payments of debt		(11)			(11)
Discount paid on issuance of debt					(12)
Debt issuance costs paid					(5)
Contribution to TruGreen Holding Corporation		(35)			
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities from Continuing Operations		(46)			(27)
Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations:					
Cash used for operating activities		(8)			(34)
Cash used for investing activities		(2)			(10)
Cash used for financing activities		(3)			(2)
Net Cash Used for Discontinued Operations		(13)			(46)
Cash Decrease During the Period		(55)			(66)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$ 421	\$ 346
5		
3		

Table of Contents

#### THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC

#### NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

#### Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The ServiceMaster Company, LLC (ServiceMaster, the Company, we, us or our) is a leading provider of essential residential and commerciservices. ServiceMaster is services include termite and pest control, home warranties, disaster restoration, janitorial, residential cleaning, furniture repair and home inspection. ServiceMaster provides these services through an extensive service network of company-owned, franchised and licensed locations operating primarily under the following leading brands: Terminix, American Home Shield, ServiceMaster Restore, ServiceMaster Clean, Merry Maids, Furniture Medic and AmeriSpec.

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ServiceMaster and its majority-owned subsidiary partnerships, limited liability companies and corporations. All consolidated ServiceMaster subsidiaries are wholly owned. ServiceMaster is organized into four principal reportable segments: Terminix, American Home Shield, Franchise Services Group and Other Operations and Headquarters. During the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed the composition of its reportable segments. See Note 14 for further details. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The Company recommends that the quarterly condensed consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, as filed with the SEC (the 2013 Form 10-K). The condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all normal and recurring adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for the fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods presented. The results of operations for any interim period are not indicative of the results that might be achieved for a full year.

On July 24, 2007 (the 2007 Closing Date ), ServiceMaster was acquired pursuant to a merger transaction (the 2007 Merger ), and, immediately following the completion of the 2007 Merger, all of the outstanding common stock of ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc. (Holdings ), the ultimate parent company of ServiceMaster, was owned by investment funds managed by, or affiliated with, Clayton, Dubilier & Rice, LLC (CD&R), Citigroup Private Equity LP (Citigroup), BAS Capital Funding Corporation (BAS) and JPMorgan Chase Funding Inc. (JPMorgan). C September 30, 2010, Citigroup transferred the management responsibility for certain investment funds that owned shares of common stock of Holdings to StepStone Group LP (StepStone), and the investment funds managed by StepStone Group, the StepStone Funds). As of December 22, 2011, Holdings purchased from BAS 7.5 million shares of its common stock. On March 30, 2012, an affiliate of BAS sold 7.5 million shares of Holdings common stock to Ridgemont Partners Secondary Fund I, L.P. (Ridgemont). On July 24, 2012, BACSVM-A L.P., an affiliate of BAS, distributed 2.5 million shares of Holdings common stock to Charlotte Investor IV, L.P., its sole limited partner.

On January 14, 2014, the Company completed a separation transaction (the TruGreen Spin-off) resulting in the spin-off of the assets and certain liabilities of the business that comprises the lawn, tree and shrub care services previously conducted by the Company primarily under the TruGreen brand name (collectively, the TruGreen Business) through a tax-free, pro rata dividend to Holdings stockholders. As a result of the

completion of the TruGreen Spin-off, TruGreen Holding Corporation ( New TruGreen ) operates the TruGreen Business as a private independent company. The historical results of the TruGreen Business, including the results of operations, cash flows and related assets and liabilities, are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented herein.

Pursuant to an agreement and plan of merger entered into by ServiceMaster in connection with the TruGreen Spin-off, on January 14, 2014, the company formerly known as The ServiceMaster Company (Old ServiceMaster) was merged with and into ServiceMaster, with ServiceMaster continuing as the surviving entity in such merger. Pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, all of the capital stock of Old ServiceMaster issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger was cancelled, and the sole stockholder of Old ServiceMaster immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (CDRSVM Holding, Inc., now known as CDRSVM Holding, LLC) was admitted as the sole member of ServiceMaster.

#### Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Company s significant accounting policies are included in the 2013 Form 10-K. The following selected accounting policies should be read in conjunction with the 2013 Form 10-K.

6

#### Table of Contents

Revenue. Revenues from pest control services, as well as liquid and fumigation termite applications, are recognized as the services are provided. The Company eradicates termites through the use of non-baiting methods (e.g., fumigation or liquid treatments) and baiting systems. Termite services using baiting systems and termite inspection and protection contracts are frequently sold through annual contracts. Service costs for these contracts are expensed as incurred. The Company recognizes revenue over the life of these contracts in proportion to the expected direct costs. Those costs bear a direct relationship to the fulfillment of the Company s obligations under the contracts and are representative of the relative value provided to the customer (proportional performance method). The Company regularly reviews its estimates of direct costs for its termite bait contracts and termite inspection and protection contracts and adjusts the estimates when appropriate.

Home warranty contracts are typically one year in duration. Home warranty claims costs are expensed as incurred. The Company recognizes revenue over the life of these contracts in proportion to the expected direct costs. Those costs bear a direct relationship to the fulfillment of the Company s obligations under the contracts and are representative of the relative value provided to the customer (proportional performance method). The Company regularly reviews its estimates of claims costs and adjusts the estimates when appropriate.

The Company has franchise agreements in its Terminix, ServiceMaster Restore, ServiceMaster Clean, Merry Maids, Furniture Medic and AmeriSpec businesses. Franchise revenue (which in the aggregate represents approximately six percent of annual consolidated operating revenue from continuing operations) consists principally of continuing monthly fees based upon the franchisee s customer-level revenue. Monthly fee revenue is recognized when the related customer-level revenue generating activity is performed by the franchisee and collectability is reasonably assured. Franchise revenue also includes initial fees resulting from the sale of a franchise or a license. These initial franchise or license fees are pre-established fixed amounts and are recognized as revenue when collectability is reasonably assured and all material services or conditions relating to the sale have been substantially performed. Total profits from the franchised operations were \$17 million and \$18 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company evaluates the performance of its franchise businesses based primarily on operating profit before corporate general and administrative expenses, interest expense and amortization of intangible assets. The portion of total franchise fee income related to initial fees received from the sale of franchises was immaterial to the Company s condensed consolidated financial statements for all periods.

The Company had \$487 million and \$448 million of deferred revenue as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Deferred revenue consists primarily of payments received for annual contracts relating to home warranties, termite baiting, termite inspection and pest control services.

Deferred Customer Acquisition Costs. Customer acquisition costs, which are incremental and direct costs of obtaining a customer, are deferred and amortized over the life of the related contract in proportion to revenue recognized. These costs include sales commissions and direct selling costs which can be shown to have resulted in a successful sale. Deferred customer acquisition costs amounted to \$28 million and \$30 million as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Advertising. On an interim basis, certain advertising costs are deferred and recognized approximately in proportion to the revenue over the year and are not deferred beyond the calendar year-end. Certain other advertising costs are expensed when the advertising occurs. The cost of direct-response advertising at Terminix, consisting primarily of direct-mail promotions, is capitalized and amortized over its expected period of future benefits. Deferred advertising costs are included in Prepaid expenses and other assets on our condensed consolidated statements of financial position.

Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets. Fixed assets and intangible assets with finite lives are depreciated and amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. These lives are based on the Company's previous experience for similar assets, potential market obsolescence and other industry and business data. As required by accounting standards for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, the Company's long-lived assets, including fixed assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill), are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If the carrying value is no longer recoverable based upon the undiscounted future cash flows of the asset, an impairment loss would be recognized equal to the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. Changes in the estimated useful lives or in the asset values could cause the Company to adjust its book value or future expense accordingly.

The Company recorded an impairment charge of \$48 million (\$29 million, net of tax) in the first quarter of 2014 relating to its decision to abandon its efforts to deploy a new operating system at American Home Shield. Included in this charge are the impairment of the capitalized software of \$45 million and the recognition of the remaining liabilities associated with the termination of lease, maintenance and hosting agreements totaling \$3 million. This impairment represented an adjustment of the carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair value of zero on a non-recurring basis.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions required under GAAP which may differ from actual results. Disclosures in the 2013 Form 10-K presented the significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and discussed how management formed its judgments. The areas discussed include revenue recognition; the allowance for uncollectible receivables; accruals for self-insured retention limits related to medical, workers compensation, auto and general liability insurance claims; accruals for

#### Table of Contents

home warranties and termite damage claims; the possible outcome of outstanding litigation; accruals for income tax liabilities as well as deferred tax accounts; the deferral and amortization of customer acquisition costs; useful lives for depreciation and amortization expense; the valuation of marketable securities; and the valuation of tangible and intangible assets.

#### **Newly Issued Accounting Statements and Positions**

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or Tax Credit Carryforward Exists to eliminate the diversity in practice associated with the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits in instances where a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. ASU 2013-11 generally requires an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, to be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward, except in certain circumstances. The amendments in ASU 2013-11 are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company s condensed consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosure of Disposals of Components of an Entity to change the criteria for reporting discontinued operations and enhance the convergence of the FASB s and the International Standard Board s reporting requirements for discontinued operations. The changes in ASU 2014-08 amend the definition of discontinued operations by limiting discontinued operations reporting to disposals of components of an entity that represent strategic shifts that have or will have a major effect on an entity s operations and financial results. ASU 2014-08 requires expanded disclosures for discontinued operations and also requires an entity to disclose the pretax profit or loss of an individually significant component of an entity that does not qualify for discontinued operations reporting. The amendments in ASU 2014-08 are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2014. The Company anticipates the adoption of this standard will not have a material impact on the Company s condensed consolidated financial statements.

#### **Note 3. Restructuring Charges**

The Company incurred restructuring charges of \$5 million (\$3 million, net of tax) and \$3 million (\$2 million, net of tax) for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Restructuring charges were comprised of the following:

		Three mor	ed	
(In millions)	2014		2013	
Terminix branch optimization(1)	\$	1	\$	1
Centers of excellence initiative(2)		4		2
Total restructuring charges	\$	5	\$	3

<sup>(1)</sup> For the three months ended March 31, 2014, these charges included severance costs. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, these charges included lease termination costs.

Represents restructuring charges related to an initiative to enhance capabilities and reduce costs in the Company s headquarters functions that provide Company-wide administrative services for our operations that we refer to as centers of excellence. For the three months ended March 31, 2014, these charges included professional fees of \$1 million and severance and other costs of \$3 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, these charges included professional fees of \$1 million and severance and other costs of \$1 million. During the remainder of 2014, the Company will continue to assess the mix and cost of its Company-wide administrative services in light of the TruGreen Spin-off. The Company does not expect additional charges related to this initiative to be significant.

The pretax charges discussed above are reported in Restructuring charges in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

#### Table of Contents

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of accrued restructuring charges, which are included in Accrued liabilities Other on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position, is presented as follows:

	Accrue Restructur	
(In millions)	Charge	s
Balance as of December 31, 2013	\$	1
Costs incurred		5
Costs paid or otherwise settled		(3)
Balance as of March 31, 2014	\$	3

#### **Note 4. Commitments and Contingencies**

The Company carries insurance policies on insurable risks at levels that it believes to be appropriate, including workers—compensation, auto and general liability risks. The Company purchases insurance policies from third-party insurance carriers, which typically incorporate significant deductibles or self-insured retentions. The Company is responsible for all claims that fall below the retention limits. In determining the Company—s accrual for self-insured claims, the Company uses historical claims experience to establish both the current year accrual and the underlying provision for future losses. This actuarially determined provision and related accrual includes known claims, as well as incurred but not reported claims. The Company adjusts its estimate of accrued self-insured claims when required to reflect changes based on factors such as changes in health care costs, accident frequency and claim severity.

A reconciliation of beginning and ending accrued self-insured claims, which are included in Accrued liabilities Self-insured claims and related expenses and Other long-term obligations, primarily self-insured claims on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position, net of reinsurance recoverables, which are included in Prepaid expenses and other assets and Other assets on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position, is presented as follows:

(In millions)	Accrued Self-insured Claims, Net
Balance as of December 31, 2013	\$ 101
Provision for self-insured claims	19
Cash payments	(17)
Balance as of March 31, 2014	\$ 103

(In millions)	Accrued Self-insured Claims, Net
Balance as of December 31, 2012	\$ 103
Provision for self-insured claims	11
Cash payments	(11)
Balance as of March 31, 2013	\$ 103

Accruals for home warranty claims in the American Home Shield business are made based on the Company s claims experience and actuarial projections. Termite damage claim accruals in the Terminix business are recorded based on both the historical rates of claims incurred within a

contract year and the cost per claim. Current activity could differ causing a change in estimates. The Company has certain liabilities with respect to existing or potential claims, lawsuits and other proceedings. The Company accrues for these liabilities when it is probable that future costs will be incurred and such costs can be reasonably estimated. Any resulting adjustments, which could be material, are recorded in the period the adjustments are identified.

In the ordinary course of conducting business activities, the Company and its subsidiaries become involved in judicial, administrative and regulatory proceedings involving both private parties and governmental authorities. These proceedings include insured and uninsured matters that are brought on an individual, collective, representative and class action basis, or other proceedings involving regulatory, employment, general and commercial liability, automobile liability, wage and hour, environmental and other matters. The Company has entered into settlement agreements in certain cases, including with respect to putative collective and class actions, which are subject to court or other approvals. If one or more of the Company settlements are not finally approved, the Company could have additional or different exposure, which could be material. At this time, the Company does not expect any of these proceedings to have a material effect on its reputation, business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows; however, the Company can give no assurance that the results

#### Table of Contents

of any such proceedings will not materially affect its reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

#### Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that are not amortized are subject to assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value based test on an annual basis or more frequently if circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The Company s annual assessment date is October 1. There were no goodwill or trade name impairment charges recorded in continuing operations in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

The table below summarizes the goodwill balances by segment for continuing operations:

		American	Franchise	
(In millions)	Terminix	Home Shield	Services Group	Total
Balance as of December 31, 2013	\$ 1,480	\$ 347	\$ 191	\$ 2,018
Acquisitions	6	31		37
Balance as of March 31, 2014	\$ 1,486	\$ 378	\$ 191	\$ 2,055

There were no accumulated impairment losses recorded in continuing operations as of March 31, 2014.

The table below summarizes the other intangible asset balances for continuing operations:

	Estimated											
	Remaining											
(In millions)	Useful Lives (Years)	Gross	As of March 31, 2014 Accumulated Gross Amortization		Net	Net Gross			ecember 31, 201 ccumulated mortization	3 Net		
Trade names(1)	N/A	\$ 1,608	\$		\$ 1,608	\$	1,608	\$		\$	1,608	
Customer relationships	3 10	530		(457)	73		512		(447)		65	
Franchise agreements	20 25	88		(55)	33		88		(54)		34	
Other	4 30	44		(29)	15		41		(27)		14	
Total		\$ 2,270	\$	(541)	\$ 1,729	\$	2,249	\$	(528)	\$	1,721	

(1) Not subject to amortization.

In the three months ended March 31, 2014, the TruGreen Business recorded an impairment change of \$139 million (\$84 million, net of tax) in discontinued operations, net of income taxes.

#### Note 6. Stock-Based Compensation

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of \$1 million (\$1 million, net of tax) and \$1 million (\$1 million, net of tax), respectively. As of March 31, 2014, there was \$20 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to non-vested stock options and restricted share units granted by Holdings under the Amended and Restated ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan. These remaining costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.14 years.

#### Note 7. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss), which primarily includes net income (loss), unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and the effect of foreign currency translation is disclosed in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

10

## Table of Contents

The following tables summarize the activity in other comprehensive income (loss), net of the related tax effects.

(In millions)	Unrealized Gains on Derivatives		Unrealized Gains on Available-for- Sale Securities		Foreign Currency Translation		Total	
Balance as of December 31, 2013	\$ 2011,401,65	1	\$	7			\$ 2000	7
Other comprehensive income (loss) before								
reclassifications:								
Pre-tax amount				1		(1)		
Tax provision (benefit)								
After tax amount				1		(1)		
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other								
comprehensive income (loss) (1)			(	3)				(3)
Spin-off of the TruGreen Business						(2)		(2)
Net current period other comprehensive loss			(:	2)		(3)		(5)
Balance as of March 31, 2014	\$	1	\$ :	5	\$	(4)	\$	2

(In millions)	Unrealized Losses on Derivatives	Unrealized Gains on Available-for- Sale Securities	Foreign Currency Translation		Total
Balance as of December 31, 2012	\$ (2) \$	6		3 \$	7
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications:					
Pre-tax amount	1	4		(1)	4
Tax provision (benefit)		2			2
After tax amount	1	2		(1)	2
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)(1)	1				1
Net current period other comprehensive income					
(loss)	2	2		(1)	3
Balance as of March 31, 2013	\$ \$	8	\$	2 \$	10

<sup>(1)</sup> Amounts are net of tax. See reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income below for further details.

Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income included the following components for the periods indicated.

Amount Reclassified from										
		Accumulated Other								
		As of March 31,		Condensed Consolidated Statements of						
(In millions)	201	4 2013		Operations and Comprehensive Loss Location						
Losses on derivatives:										
Fuel swap contracts	\$	\$		Cost of services rendered and products sold						
Interest rate swap contracts			2	Interest expense						
Net losses on derivatives			2							

Impact of income taxes			1	(Benefit) Provision for income taxes
Total reclassifications related to derivatives	\$	\$	1	
Gains on available-for-sale securities	\$ (4)	\$		Interest and net investment income
Impact of income taxes	1			(Benefit) Provision for income taxes
Total reclassifications related to securities	\$ (3)	\$		
Total reclassifications for the period	\$ (3)	\$	1	
		11		

#### Table of Contents

#### **Note 8. Supplemental Cash Flow Information**

Supplemental information relating to the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows is presented in the following table:

	•	Three months ended March 31,								
(In millions)	2014			2013						
Cash paid for or (received from):										
Interest expense	\$	92	\$		89					
Interest and dividend income		(1)			(1)					
Income taxes, net of refunds		2			2					

The Company acquired \$2 million and \$6 million of property and equipment through capital leases and other non-cash financing transactions in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which have been excluded from the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows as non-cash investing and financing activities.

#### Note 9. Cash and Marketable Securities

Cash, money market funds and certificates of deposits with maturities of three months or less when purchased are included in Cash and cash equivalents on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position. As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company s investments consisted primarily of domestic publicly traded debt and certificates of deposit ( Debt securities ) and common equity securities ( Equity securities ). The amortized cost, fair value and gross unrealized gains and losses of the Company s short- and long-term investments in Debt and Equity securities as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were as follows:

(In millions)	ortized Cost	U	Gross nrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Fair Value
Available-for-sale and trading securities, March 31, 2014:					
Debt securities	\$ 71	\$	1	\$	\$ 72
Equity securities	34		7		41
Total securities	\$ 105	\$	8	\$	\$ 113

(In millions)	A	mortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Fair Value
Available-for-sale and trading securities, December 31, 2013:					
Debt securities	\$	97	\$ 3	\$ (1) \$	99
Equity securities		41	9		50
Total securities	\$	138	\$ 12	\$ (1) \$	149

There were no unrealized losses which had been in a loss position for more than one year as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. The aggregate fair value of the investments with unrealized losses was \$18 million and \$30 million as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Gains and losses on sales of investments, as determined on a specific identification basis, are included in investment income in the period they are realized. The Company periodically reviews its portfolio of investments to determine whether there has been an other than temporary decline in the value of the investments from factors such as deterioration in the financial condition of the issuer or the market(s) in which the issuer competes. The table below summarizes proceeds and gross realized gains resulting from sales of available-for-sale securities. There were no gross realized losses or impairment charges due to other than temporary declines in the value of certain investments for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

	Three months ended				
		2013			
\$	42	\$ 4			
	5	1			
	3				
12					
	\$	March 3 2014 \$ 42 5 3			

#### Table of Contents

#### Note 10. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is summarized in the following table:

(In millions)	As of March 31, 2014	As of December 31, 2013
Senior secured term loan facility maturing in 2017 (Tranche B)	\$ 988	\$ 991
Senior secured term loan facility maturing in 2017 (Tranche C)(1)	1,196	1,198
7.00% senior notes maturing in 2020	750	750
8.00% senior notes maturing in 2020(2)	602	602
Revolving credit facility maturing in 2017		
7.10% notes maturing in 2018(3)	72	71
7.45% notes maturing in 2027	159	159
7.25% notes maturing in 2038	63	63
Vehicle capital leases(4)	32	32
Other	42	40
Less current portion	(41)	(39)
Total long-term debt	\$ 3,863	\$ 3,867

<sup>(1)</sup> As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, presented net of \$9 million and \$10 million, respectively, in unamortized original issue discount paid as part of the 2013 amendment (the 2013 Term Loan Facility Amendment ).

#### Note 11. Acquisitions

Acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition method and, accordingly, the results of operations of the acquired businesses have been included in the Company s condensed consolidated financial statements since their dates of acquisition. The assets and liabilities of these

<sup>(2)</sup> As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, includes \$2 million in unamortized premium received on the sale of \$100.0 million aggregate principal amount of such notes.

<sup>(3)</sup> The increase in the balance from December 31, 2013 to March 31, 2014 reflects the amortization of fair value adjustments related to purchase accounting, which increases the effective interest rate from the coupon rates shown above.

<sup>(4)</sup> The Company has entered into a fleet management services agreement (the Fleet Agreement ) which, among other things, allows the Company to obtain fleet vehicles through a leasing program. All leases under the Fleet Agreement are capital leases for accounting purposes. The lease rental payments include an interest component calculated using a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR plus other contractual adjustments and a borrowing margin totaling 2.45 percent as of March 31, 2014.

businesses were recorded in the financial statements at their estimated fair values as of the acquisition dates.

On February 28, 2014, the Company acquired Home Security of America, Inc. (HSA), based in Madison, Wisconsin. The total net purchase price for this acquisition was \$32 million. The Company recorded goodwill of \$30 million and other intangibles of \$17 million related to this acquisition. As of March 31, 2014, the purchase price allocation for this acquisition has not been finalized.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company completed several pest control and termite acquisitions. The total net purchase price for these acquisitions was \$11 million. The Company recorded goodwill of \$7 million and other intangibles of \$4 million related to these acquisitions.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, the Company completed several pest control and termite acquisitions. The total net purchase price for these acquisitions was \$4 million. The Company recorded goodwill of \$3 million and other intangibles of \$1 million related to these acquisitions.

Supplemental cash flow information regarding the Company s acquisitions is as follows:

		Three months ended							
		h 31,							
(In millions)	2014			2013					
Purchase price (including liabilities assumed)	\$	71	\$		4				
Less liabilities assumed		(28)							
Net purchase price	\$	43	\$		4				
Net cash paid for acquisitions	\$	41	\$		3				
Seller financed debt		2			1				
Payment for acquisitions	\$	43	\$		4				

#### **Note 12. Discontinued Operations**

#### TruGreen Spin-off

On January 14, 2014, the Company completed the TruGreen Spin-off resulting in the spin-off of the assets and certain liabilities of the TruGreen Business through a tax-free, pro rata dividend to Holdings—stockholders. As a result of the completion of the TruGreen Spin-off, New TruGreen operates the TruGreen Business as a private independent company. The TruGreen Business experienced a significant downturn in recent years. Since 2011, the TruGreen Business lost 400,000 customers, or 19 percent of its customer base. The TruGreen Business—s operating margins also eroded during this time-frame due to production inefficiencies, higher chemical costs and inflationary pressures, compounded by lower fixed cost leverage as falling customer counts drove revenue down. The TruGreen Business experienced operating revenue and Adjusted EBITDA declines of 18.6 percent and 87.6 percent, respectively, from 2011 to 2013. In light of these developments, the Company made the decision to effect the TruGreen Spin-off, which we expect will enable the Company—s management to increase its focus on Terminix, American Home Shield and the Franchise Services Group segment while providing New TruGreen, as an independently operated, private company, the time and focus required to execute a turnaround.

As a result of the TruGreen Spin-off, we were required to perform an interim impairment analysis as of January 14, 2014 on the TruGreen trade name. The assumptions were developed with the view of the TruGreen Business as a stand-alone company, resulting in an increase in the assumed discount rate of 350 basis points (bps) as compared to the discount rate used in the October 1, 2013 impairment test for the TruGreen trade name. This interim impairment analysis resulted in a pre-tax non-cash trade name impairment charge of \$139 million (\$84 million, net of tax) to reduce the carrying value of the TruGreen trade name to its estimated fair value. This impairment charge was recorded in Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, in the three months ended March 31, 2014. The impairment of the TruGreen trade name represented an adjustment of the carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair value on a non-recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs on the date of the TruGreen Spin-off.

#### Table of Contents

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities distributed to New TruGreen as part of the TruGreen spin-off on January 14, 2014:

(In millions)	
Assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 57
Receivables, net	22
Inventories and other current assets	40
Property and equipment, net	181
Intangible assets, net	216
Other long-term assets	6
Total Assets	\$ 522
Liabilities:	
Current liabilities	\$ 149
Long-term debt and other long-term liabilities	93
Total Liabilities	\$ 242
Net assets distributed to New TruGreen	\$ 280

The historical results of the TruGreen Business, including the results of operations, cash flows and related assets and liabilities, are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented herein.

In connection with the TruGreen Spin-off, the Company and TruGreen Limited Partnership ( TGLP ), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of New TruGreen, entered into a transition services agreement pursuant to which the Company and its subsidiaries provide TGLP with specified communications, public relations, finance and accounting, tax, treasury, internal audit, human resources operations and benefits, risk management and insurance, supply management, real estate management, marketing, facilities, information technology and other support services. The charges for the transition services allow the Company to fully recover the allocated direct costs of providing the services, plus specified margins and any out-of-pocket costs and expenses. The services provided under the transition services agreement will terminate at various specified times, and in no event later than January 14, 2016 (except certain information technology services, which the Company expects to provide to TGLP beyond the two-year period). TGLP may terminate the transition services agreement (or certain services under the transition services agreement) for convenience upon 90 days written notice, in which case TGLP will be required to reimburse the Company for early termination costs.

Under this transition services agreement, in the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded \$10 million of fees due from TGLP, which is included, net of costs incurred, in Selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. As of March 31, 2014, all amounts owed by TGLP under this agreement have been paid.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company processed certain of TGLP s accounts payable transactions. Through this process, in the three months ended March 31, 2014, \$44 million was paid on TGLP s behalf, of which \$41 million was repaid by TGLP. As of March 31, 2014, the Company recorded a \$3 million receivable due from TGLP, which is included in Receivables on the condensed consolidated statement of financial position.

In addition, the Company, Holdings, New TruGreen and TGLP entered into (1) a separation and distribution agreement containing key provisions relating to the separation of the TruGreen Business and the distribution of New TruGreen common stock to Holdings—stockholders (including relating to specified TruGreen legal matters with respect to which we have agreed to retain liability, as well as insurance coverage, non-competition, indemnification and other matters), (2) an employee matters agreement allocating liabilities and responsibilities relating to employee benefit plans and programs and other related matters and (3) a tax matters agreement governing the respective rights, responsibilities and obligations of the parties thereto with respect to taxes, including allocating liabilities for income taxes attributable to New TruGreen and its subsidiaries generally to the Company for tax periods (or portions thereof) ending on or before January 14, 2014 and generally to New TruGreen for tax periods (or portions thereof) beginning after that date.

#### Financial Information for Discontinued Operations

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for all periods presented includes the operating results of the TruGreen Business and the previously sold businesses noted in the 2013 Form 10-K.

## Table of Contents

The operating results of discontinued operations are as follows:

		Three months ended March 31,			
(In millions)	2014	ı		2013	
Operating Revenue	\$	6	\$		94
Loss before income taxes(1)		(155)			(50)
Benefit for income taxes(1)		(60)			(21)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes(1)	\$	(95)	\$		(29)

<sup>(1)</sup> During the first quarter of 2014, a pre-tax non-cash trade name impairment charge of \$139 million (\$84 million, net of tax) was recorded to reduce the carrying value of the TruGreen trade name to its estimated fair value.

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are summarized below:

(In millions)	As of March 31, 20		s of er 31, 2013
Assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	\$	10
Receivables, net			28
Inventories			17
Prepaid expenses and other current assets			21
Total Current Assets			76
Property and equipment, net			181
Intangible assets, net			355
Other long-term assets			6
Total Assets	\$	\$	618
Liabilities:			
Accounts payable	\$	\$	19
Accrued liabilities		7	17
Deferred revenue			91
Current portion of long-term debt			12
Total Current Liabilities		7	139
Long-term debt			37
Deferred taxes and other long-term liabilities			125
Total Liabilities	\$	7 \$	301

At March 31, 2014, the liabilities of discontinued operations relate primarily to accruals for legal and other reserves. At December 31, 2013, these balances also reflect the historical assets and liabilities of the TruGreen Business, which was spun off in the three months ended March 31, 2014.

#### Note 13. Income Taxes

As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had \$7 million and \$8 million, respectively, of tax benefits primarily reflected in state tax returns that have not been recognized for financial reporting purposes (unrecognized tax benefits). The Company currently estimates that, as a result of pending tax settlements and expiration of statutes of limitations, the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could be reduced by approximately \$1 million during the next 12 months.

As required by Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 740 Income Taxes, the Company computes interim period income taxes by applying an anticipated annual effective tax rate to our year-to-date income or loss from continuing operations before income taxes, except for significant unusual or infrequently occurring items. The Company s estimated tax rate is adjusted each quarter in accordance with ASC 740.

The effective tax rate on (loss) income from continuing operations was a benefit of 33.2 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared to a provision of 48.3 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2013. The effective tax rate on loss from continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2014 was affected by various discrete events, including an adjustment to deferred state taxes resulting from a change in the Company s state apportionment factors primarily attributable to the

#### Table of Contents

TruGreen Spin-off. The effective tax rate on income from continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2013 was affected by the reclassification of the TruGreen Business to discontinued operations and the resulting impact on the allocation of the full year effective tax rate on income from continuing operations to interim periods.

#### **Note 14. Business Segment Reporting**

The business of the Company is conducted through four reportable segments: Terminix, American Home Shield, Franchise Services Group and Other Operations and Headquarters.

In accordance with accounting standards for segments, the Company s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different services. The Terminix segment provides termite and pest control services to residential and commercial customers and distributes pest control products. The American Home Shield segment provides home warranties for household systems and appliances. The Franchise Services Group segment provides residential and commercial disaster restoration, janitorial and cleaning services through franchises primarily under the ServiceMaster Restore and ServiceMaster Clean brand names, home cleaning services through franchises and Company-owned locations primarily under the Merry Maids brand name, on-site wood furniture repair and restoration services primarily under the Furniture Medic brand name and home inspection services primarily under the AmeriSpec brand name. The Other Operations and Headquarters segment includes The ServiceMaster Acceptance Company Limited Partnership (SMAC), our financing subsidiary exclusively dedicated to providing financing to our franchisees and retail customers of our operating units, and the Company s headquarters operations (substantially all of which costs are allocated to the Company s other segments), which provide various technology, marketing, finance, legal and other support services to the business units.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed the composition of its reportable segments. Merry Maids, previously reported within the Other Operations and Headquarters segment, is now included in the Franchise Services Group segment with the franchise businesses previously reported as the ServiceMaster Clean segment. The composition of our reportable segments is consistent with that used by our chief operating decision maker (the CODM ) to evaluate performance and allocate resources. The changes in the composition of the Company s reportable segments have been reflected in the historical results for all periods presented herein.

Information regarding the accounting policies used by the Company is described in Note 2. The Company derives substantially all of its revenue from customers and franchisees in the United States with less than two percent generated in foreign markets. Operating expenses of the business units consist of direct costs and indirect costs allocated from the Other Operations and Headquarters segment. During the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed its methodology for allocating general corporate overhead expenses. In prior periods, allocations were limited to corporate support services incurred directly on behalf of each reportable segment. Under the new method, certain expenses related to general corporate support services previously reflected in the Other Operations and Headquarters segment are now allocated to each reportable segment. In periods prior to the TruGreen Spin-off, expenses which are allocated to TruGreen under the new method but are not reflected in discontinued operations are included in the Other Operations and Headquarters segment. Such expenses amounted to \$9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2013. This change has no impact to the Company s consolidated Net Income or Adjusted EBITDA.

The Company uses Adjusted EBITDA as its measure of segment profitability. Accordingly, the CODM evaluates performance and allocates resources based primarily on Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before: income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes; provision (benefit) for income taxes; gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt; interest expense; depreciation and amortization expense; non-cash goodwill and trade name impairment; non-cash impairment of software and other related costs; non-cash impairment of property and equipment; non-cash stock-based compensation expense; restructuring charges; management and consulting fees;

and non-cash effects attributable to the application of purchase accounting. The Company  $\,$  s definition of Adjusted EBITDA may not be calculated or comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

## Table of Contents

Segment information for continuing operations is presented below:

		Three months ended March 31,		
(In millions)	2014		2013	
Operating Revenue:				
Terminix	\$ 320	\$	313	3
American Home Shield	151		143	3
Franchise Services Group	60		50	6
Other Operations and Headquarters	2		2	2
Total Operating Revenue	\$ 533	\$	514	4
Adjusted EBITDA:(1)				
Terminix	\$ 78	\$	7:	5
American Home Shield	23		2	1
Franchise Services Group	18		1′	7
Other Operations and Headquarters	(4)		(10	0)
Total Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 115	\$	103	3

<sup>(1)</sup> Presented below is a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Net Loss:

	Three months ended March 31,		
(In millions)	2014	,	2013
Adjusted EBITDA:			
Terminix	\$ 78	\$	75
American Home Shield	23		21
Franchise Services Group	18		17
Other Operations and Headquarters	(4)		(10)
Total Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 115	\$	103
Depreciation and amortization expense	(25)		(25)
Non-cash impairment of software and other related costs	(48)		
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense	(1)		(1)
Restructuring charges	(5)		(3)
Management and consulting fees	(2)		(2)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(95)		(29)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes	9		(6)
Interest expense	(61)		(60)
Net Loss	\$ (113)	\$	(23)

## **Note 15. Related Party Transactions**

#### **Consulting Agreements**

The Company and Holdings are parties to a consulting agreement with CD&R under which CD&R provides the Company with on-going consulting and management advisory services. The annual consulting fee payable under the consulting agreement with CD&R is \$6.25 million. Under this agreement, the Company recorded consulting fees of \$2 million in each of the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, which is included in Selling and administrative expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The consulting agreement also provides that CD&R may receive additional fees in connection with certain subsequent financing and acquisition or disposition transactions. There were no additional fees incurred in each of the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. The consulting agreement will terminate on July 24, 2017, unless terminated earlier at CD&R s election. On March 24, 2014, Holdings, our ultimate parent, filed a Registration Statement on Form S-1 with the SEC for an initial public offering ( IPO ). As disclosed in the Registration Statement and as described below, we intend to terminate the CD&R consulting agreement in connection with the IPO. No assurances can be given that the IPO will be completed and that the CD&R consulting agreement will terminate as expected.

The Company and Holdings are parties to consulting agreements with StepStone, JPMorgan and Ridgemont (and formerly with BAS). The consulting agreements terminate on June 30, 2016 or upon the earlier termination of the consulting agreement with CD&R (the Ridgemont consulting agreement also provides for termination upon an IPO). Effective January 1, 2012, the annual consulting fee formerly payable to BAS (and now payable to Ridgemont) was reduced to \$0.25 million. Pursuant to the consulting agreements, the Company is required to pay aggregate annual consulting fees of \$1 million to StepStone, JPMorgan and Ridgemont (formerly payable to BAS), respectively.

In connection with the IPO, we intend to enter into termination agreements with CD&R, StepStone, JPMorgan and Ridgemont pursuant to which the parties will agree to terminate the ongoing consulting fees described above. Pursuant to the termination agreements, we intend to pay termination fees payable upon the consummation of the IPO. Thereafter, the consulting fees will terminate. As described above, no assurances can be given that the IPO will be completed and that the consulting agreements will terminate as expected.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Revolving Promissory Note

On April 19, 2013, the Company entered into a revolving promissory note with Holdings with a maximum borrowing capacity of \$25 million that is scheduled to mature on April 18, 2018. Amounts outstanding under this agreement shall bear interest at the rate of 5.0 percent per annum. As of March 31, 2014, Holdings had borrowed \$14 million under this note. The funds borrowed under this note are used by Holdings to repurchase shares of its common stock from associates who have left the Company.

#### Note 16. Fair Value Measurements

The period-end carrying amounts of receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. The period-end carrying amounts of long-term notes receivable approximate fair value as the effective interest rates for these instruments are comparable to period-end market rates. The period-end carrying amounts of short- and long-term marketable securities also approximate fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported net of tax as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position, or, for certain unrealized losses, reported in interest and net investment income in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss if the decline in value is other than temporary. The carrying amount of total debt was \$3,904 million and \$3,906 million and the estimated fair value was \$4,039 million and \$3,906 million as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair value of the Company s debt is estimated based on available market prices for the same or similar instruments which are considered significant other observable inputs (Level 2) within the fair value hierarchy. The fair values presented reflect the amounts that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). The fair value estimates presented in this report are based on information available to the Company as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

The Company has estimated the fair value of its financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis using the market and income approaches. For investments in marketable securities, deferred compensation trust assets and derivative contracts, which are carried at their fair values, the Company s fair value estimates incorporate quoted market prices, other observable inputs (for example, forward interest rates) and unobservable inputs (for example, forward commodity prices) at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate swap contracts are valued using forward interest rate curves obtained from third-party market data providers. The fair value of each contract is the sum of the expected future settlements between the contract counterparties, discounted to present value. The expected future settlements are determined by comparing the contract interest rate to the expected forward interest rate as of each settlement date and applying the difference between the two rates to the notional amount of debt in the interest rate swap contracts.

Fuel swap contracts are valued using forward fuel price curves obtained from third-party market data providers. The fair value of each contract is the sum of the expected future settlements between the contract counterparties, discounted to present value. The expected future settlements are determined by comparing the contract fuel price to the expected forward fuel price as of each settlement date and applying the difference between the contract and expected prices to the notional gallons in the fuel swap contracts. The Company regularly reviews the forward price curves obtained from third-party market data providers and related changes in fair value for reasonableness utilizing information available to the Company from other published sources.

The Company has not changed its valuation techniques for measuring the fair value of any financial assets and liabilities during the year. Transfers between levels, if any, are recognized at the end of the reporting period. There were no significant transfers between levels during each of the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

## Table of Contents

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company s financial instruments that are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis for the periods presented are as follows:

(In millions)	Statement of Financial Position Location	rrying ′alue	Pri A Ma	As of M Estim noted ces In ctive arkets evel 1)	ated Fa Sig	1, 2014 air Value Mea gnificant Other oservable Inputs Level 2)	 Significant Jnobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Financial Assets:							
Deferred compensation trust assets	Long-term marketable securities	\$ 10	\$	10	\$		\$
Investments in marketable securities	Marketable securities and Long-term marketable securities	103		55		48	
Fuel swap contracts:							
Current	Prepaid expenses and other assets	1					1
Total financial assets		\$ 114	\$	65	\$	48	\$ 1

	As of December 31, 2013									
	Estimated Fair Value Measurement									
(In millions)	Statement of Financial Position Location		rrying ′alue	Pri A Ma	uoted ices In ctive arkets evel 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)		Signif Unobse Inp (Lev	rvable uts	
Financial Assets:										
Deferred compensation trust assets	Long-term marketable securities	\$	13	\$	13	\$		\$		
Investments in marketable securities	Marketable securities and Long-term marketable securities		136		61		75			
Fuel swap contracts:										
Current	Prepaid expenses and other assets		1						1	
Total financial assets		\$	150	\$	74	\$	75	\$	1	

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending fair values of financial instruments valued using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) on a recurring basis is presented as follows:

	Fuel	l Swap
		ntract
(In millions)	Assets ()	Liabilities)
Balance as of December 31, 2013	\$	1
Total gains (realized and unrealized)		
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income		
Balance as of March 31, 2014	\$	1

(In millions)	Con	Swap tract Liabilities)
Balance as of December 31, 2012	\$	2
Total gains (realized and unrealized)		
Included in accumulated other comprehensive income		1
Balance as of March 31, 2013	\$	3
19		

#### Table of Contents

The following tables present information relating to the significant unobservable inputs of our Level 3 financial instruments as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

Item	Fair Value as of March 31, 2014 (in millions)	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Input	Range	Weighted Average
Fuel swap contracts	\$ 1	Discounted Cash Flows	Forward Unleaded Price per Gallon(1)	\$3.23 - \$3.86	\$ 3.62
Item	Fair Value as of December 31, 2013 (in millions)	Valuation Technique	Unobservable Input	Range	Weighted Average
Fuel swap contracts	\$ 1	Discounted Cash Flows	Forward Unleaded Price per Gallon(1)	\$3.20 - \$3.87	\$ 3.60

<sup>(1)</sup> Forward prices per gallon were derived from third-party market data providers. A decrease in the forward price would result in a decrease in the fair value of the fuel swap contracts.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with changes in fuel prices and has in the past used, and may in the future use, derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with changes in interest rates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. In designating its derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments under accounting standards for derivative instruments, the Company formally documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for the use of the hedging instrument. This documentation includes linking the derivatives to forecasted transactions. The Company assesses at the time a derivative contract is entered into, and at least quarterly thereafter, whether the derivative item is effective in offsetting the projected changes in cash flows of the associated forecasted transactions. All of the Company s designated hedging instruments are classified as cash flow hedges.

The Company has historically hedged a significant portion of its annual fuel consumption. The Company has also historically hedged the interest payments on a portion of its variable rate debt through the use of interest rate swap agreements, although the Company has no interest rate swap agreements outstanding as of March 31, 2014. All of the Company s fuel swap contracts and interest rate swap contracts are classified as cash flow hedges, and, as such, the hedging instruments are recorded on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position as either an asset or liability at fair value, with the effective portion of changes in the fair value attributable to the hedged risks recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. Any change in the fair value of the hedging instrument resulting from ineffectiveness, as defined by accounting standards, is recognized in current period earnings. Cash flows related to fuel and interest rate derivatives are classified as operating activities in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.

The effect of derivative instruments on the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss and accumulated other comprehensive income on the condensed consolidated statements of financial position is presented as follows:

(In millions)

Effective Portion of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Accumulated Other Effective Portion of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated Other

Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedge Relationships	Comprehensive Income Three months e	Comprehensive Income into Earnings nded March 31, 2014	Location of Gain (Loss) included in Earnings
Fuel swap contracts	\$	\$	Cost of services rendered and products sold
		20	

#### **Table of Contents**

Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedge Relationships	Effective Portion of Gain Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Three mo		Effective Portion of Loss Reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incom into Earnings d March 31, 2013	ıe	Location of Gain (Loss) included in Earnings
Fuel swap contracts	\$	1	\$		Cost of services rendered and products sold
Interest rate swap contracts	\$	2	\$	(2)	Interest expense

Ineffective portions of derivative instruments designated in accordance with accounting standards as cash flow hedge relationships were insignificant during the three months ended March 31, 2014. As of March 31, 2014, the Company had fuel swap contracts to pay fixed prices for fuel with an aggregate notional amount of \$21 million, maturing through 2014. Under the terms of its fuel swap contracts, the Company is required to post collateral in the event that the fair value of the contracts exceeds a certain agreed upon liability level and in other circumstances required by the counterparty. As of March 31, 2014, the Company had posted \$1 million in letters of credit as collateral under its fuel hedging program, none of which were posted under the Company s senior secured revolving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Facility ).

The effective portion of the gain or loss on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as cash flow hedging instruments is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. These amounts are reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecasted debt interest settlement or the fuel settlement affects earnings. The amount expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next 12 months includes unrealized gains and losses related to open fuel hedges. Specifically, as the underlying forecasted transactions occur during the next 12 months, the hedging gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive income expected to be recognized in earnings is a gain of less than \$1 million, net of tax, as of March 31, 2014. The amounts that are ultimately reclassified into earnings will be based on actual fuel prices at the time the positions are settled and may differ materially from the amount noted above.

#### Note 17. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements of The ServiceMaster Company, LLC and Subsidiaries

The following condensed consolidating financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared pursuant to Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X. These condensed consolidating financial statements have been prepared from the Company s financial information on the same basis of accounting as the condensed consolidated financial statements. Goodwill and other intangible assets have been allocated to all of the subsidiaries of the Company based on management s estimates.

The payment obligations of the Company under the \$600 million aggregate principal amount of 8 percent senior notes due 2020 (the 8% 2020 Notes) and \$750 million aggregate principal amount of 7 percent senior notes due 2020 (the 7% 2020 Notes), and together with the 8% 2020 Notes, the 2020 Notes) are jointly and severally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Company is domestic subsidiaries that guarantee our indebtedness under the Term Loan Facility, the pre-funded letter of credit facility (together, the Term Facilities) and the Revolving Credit Facility (together with the Term Facilities, the Credit Facilities) (the Guarantors). Each of the Guarantors is wholly owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company, and all guarantees are full and unconditional. Our non-U.S. subsidiaries, our subsidiaries subject to regulation as an insurance, home warranty, service contract or similar company, and certain other subsidiaries (the Non-Guarantors) do not guarantee the 2020 Notes. A Guarantor will be released from its obligations under its guarantee under certain customary circumstances, including, (i) the sale or disposition of the Guarantor, (ii) the release of the Guarantor from all of its obligations under all guarantees related to any indebtedness of the Company, (iii) the merger or consolidation of the Guarantor as specified in the indenture governing the 2020 Notes, (iv) the Guarantor becomes an unrestricted subsidiary under the indenture governing the 2020 Notes or (vi) the payment in full of the principal amount of the 2020 Notes.

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

## **Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss**

## For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 (Unaudited)

	P	arent		Non-		
	I	ssuer	Guarantors	Guarantors	Eliminations	Consolidated
Operating Revenue	\$	\$	371	\$ 177	\$ (15)	\$ 533
Cost of services rendered and products sold			213	89	(14)	288
Selling and administrative expenses		2	70	79		151
Amortization expense			12	1		13
Impairment of software and other related costs				48		48
Restructuring charges			1	4		5
Interest expense		55	5	1		61
Interest and net investment loss (income)		1		(6)	(1)	(6)
(Loss) Income from Continuing						
Operations before Income Taxes		(58)	70	(39)		(27)
(Benefit) Provision for income taxes		(19)	19	(9)		(9)
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations		(39)	51	(30)		(18)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,						
net of income taxes		(4)	59	(150)		(95)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries (net of tax)		(70)	(183)		253	
Net Loss	\$	(113) \$	(73)	\$ (180)	\$ 253	\$ (113)
Total Comprehensive Loss	\$	(116) \$	(75)	\$ (183)	\$ 258	\$ (116)

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

## Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income

## For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2013 (Unaudited)

	Parent		Non-		
	Issuer	Guarantors	Guarantors	Eliminations	Consolidated
Operating Revenue	\$ 5	\$ 360	\$ 169	\$ (15)	\$ 514
Cost of services rendered and products sold		209	76	(15)	270
Selling and administrative expenses	2	68	88		158
Amortization expense		12	1		13
Restructuring charges		1	2		3
Interest expense	26	28	6		60
Interest and net investment income			(2)		(2)
(Loss) Income from Continuing					
Operations before Income Taxes	(28)	42	(2)		12
(Benefit) provision for income taxes	(3)	(5)	14		6
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations	(25)	47	(16)		6
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,					
net of income taxes	(1)	20	(48)		(29)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries (net of tax)	3	(60)		57	
Net (Loss) Income	\$ (23)	\$ 7	\$ (64)	\$ 57	\$ (23)
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income	\$ (20)	\$ 8	\$ (62)	\$ 54	\$ (20)

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

## Condensed Consolidating Statement of Financial Position (Unaudited)

#### As of March 31, 2014

	Parent		Non-				
	Issuer	Guarantors	Guarantors	E	liminations	Consolid	lated
Assets:							
Current Assets:							
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 251	\$ 8	\$ 162	\$		\$	421
Marketable securities			23				23
Receivables	2	95	427		(131)		393
Inventories		36	2				38
Prepaid expenses and other assets	9	22	27		(1)		57
Deferred customer acquisition costs		12	16				28
Deferred taxes	76	28	3				107
Total Current Assets	338	201	660		(132)		1,067
Property and Equipment:							
At cost		199	146				345
Less: accumulated depreciation		(115)	(96)				(211)
Net Property and Equipment		84	50				134
Other Assets:							
Goodwill		1,663	392				2,055
Intangible assets, primarily trade names,							
service marks and trademarks, net		969	760				1,729
Notes receivable	34		22		(19)		37
Long-term marketable securities	10		80				90
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	3,281	1,046			(4,327)		
Other assets	62	24	7		(42)		51
Debt issuance costs	38						38
Total Assets	\$ 3,763	\$ 3,987	\$ 1,971	\$	(4,520)	\$	5,201
Liabilities and Shareholder s (Deficit) Equity:							
Current Liabilities:							
Accounts payable	\$	\$ 40	\$ 52	\$		\$	92
Accrued liabilities:							
Payroll and related expenses	2	20	32				54
Self-insured claims and related expenses	7	24	55				86
Accrued interest payable	17				(1)		16
Other		28	27				55
Deferred revenue		94	393				487
Liabilities of discontinued operations	7						7
Current portion of long-term debt	152	19	1		(131)		41
Total Current Liabilities	185	225	560		(132)		838
Long-Term Debt	3,808	37	37		(19)		3,863
Other Long-Term Liabilities:							
Deferred taxes		462	276		(42)		696

Edgar Filing: SERVICEMASTER CO, LLC - Form 10-Q

80		554	(634)	
32	24	90		146
112	486	920	(676)	842
(342)	3,239	454	(3,693)	(342)
\$ 3,763	\$ 3,987	\$ 1,971	\$ (4,520)	\$ 5,201
	32 112 (342)	32 24 112 486 (342) 3,239	32 24 90 112 486 920 (342) 3,239 454	32 24 90 112 486 920 (676) (342) 3,239 454 (3,693)

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

## **Condensed Consolidating Statement of Financial Position (Unaudited)**

## As of December 31, 2013

	Parent		Non-			
	Issuer	Guarantors	Guarantors	E	Eliminations	Consolidated
Assets:						
Current Assets:						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 401	\$ 7	\$ 68	\$		\$ 476
Marketable securities			27			27
Receivables	2	97	401		(106)	394
Inventories		37	2		` ,	39
Prepaid expenses and other assets		25	38		(7)	56
Deferred customer acquisition costs		15	15			30
Deferred taxes	38	66	3			107
Assets of discontinued operations		5	71			76
Total Current Assets	441	252	625		(113)	1,205
Property and Equipment:					` ,	,
At cost		198	183			381
Less: accumulated depreciation		(111)	(93)			(204)
Net Property and Equipment		87	90			177
1 2 11						
Other Assets:						
Goodwill		1,655	363			2,018
Intangible assets, primarily trade names,						
service marks and trademarks, net		977	744			1,721
Notes receivable	2,016		23		(2,002)	37
Long-term marketable securities	13		109			122
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,868	1,379			(3,247)	
Other assets	33	23	28		(35)	49
Debt issuance costs	41					41
Assets of discontinued operations	3		539			542
Total Assets	\$ 4,415	\$ 4,373	\$ 2,521	\$	(5,397)	\$ 5,912
Liabilities and Shareholder s Equity:						
Current Liabilities:						
Accounts payable	\$ 2	\$ 42	\$ 48	\$		\$ 92
Accrued liabilities:						
Payroll and related expenses	2	28	40			70
Self-insured claims and related expenses		29	49			78
Accrued interest payable	52				(1)	51
Other	7	26	28		(6)	55
Deferred revenue		92	356			448
Liabilities of discontinued operations			139			139
Current portion of long-term debt	127	17	1		(106)	39
Total Current Liabilities	190	234	661		(113)	972
Long-Term Debt	3,812	1,711	346		(2,002)	3,867

Edgar Filing: SERVICEMASTER CO, LLC - Form 10-Q

Other Long-Term Liabilities:					
Deferred taxes		455	270	(35)	690
Intercompany payable	341		330	(671)	
Liabilities of discontinued operations	3	122	37		162
Other long-term obligations, primarily					
self-insured claims	17	22	130		169
Total Other Long-Term Liabilities	361	599	767	(706)	1,021
Shareholder s Equity	52	1,829	747	(2,576)	52
Total Liabilities and Shareholder s Equity	\$ 4,415	\$ 4,373	\$ 2,521 \$	(5,397) \$	5,912

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

## Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

## For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

(In millions)

	The ServiceMaste Company	er		Guarantors		Non- Guarantors	Eliminations	Conso	lidated
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period	\$ 4	01	\$	7	\$	68	\$	\$	476
	· ·		-		_		<del>-</del>	-	
Net Cash (Used for) Provided from Operating Activities from Continuing Operations	(1	31)		141		29	(18)		21
Cash Flows from Investing Activities from									
Continuing Operations:									
Property additions				(3)		(11)			(14)
Other business acquisitions, net of cash acquired				(9)		(32)			(41)
Notes receivable, financial investments and securities, net						38			38
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities from						30			50
Continuing Operations				(12)		(5)			(17)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities from Continuing Operations:									
Payments of debt		(6)		(4)		(1)			(11)
Contribution to TruGreen Holding									
Corporation	(	(35)							(35)
Shareholders dividends				(9)		(9)	18		
Net intercompany advances		30		(115)		85			
Net Cash (Used for) Provided from Financing									
Activities from Continuing Operations	(	(11)		(128)		75	18		(46)
Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations:									
Cash used for operating activities		(8)							(8)
Cash used for investing activities						(2)			(2)
Cash used for financing activities						(3)			(3)
Net Cash Used for Discontinued Operations		(8)				(5)			(13)
		(0)				(2)			(10)
Cash (Decrease) Increase During the Period	(1	50)		1		94			(55)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$ 2	251	\$	8	\$	162	\$	\$	421

26

## THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

## Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

## For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2013

	The ServiceMaster Company	Guarantors	Non- Guarantors	Eliminations	Consolidated
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of					
Period	\$ 317	\$ 7	\$ 88	\$	\$ 412
Net Cash (Used for) Provided from Operating					
Activities from Continuing Operations	(66)	69	30	(10)	23
retivities from Continuing Operations	(00)	0)	30	(10)	23
Cash Flows from Investing Activities from					
Continuing Operations:					
Property additions		(3)	(6)		(9)
Other business acquisitions, net of cash					
acquired		(3)			(3)
Notes receivable, financial investments and		•			
securities, net			(4)		(4)
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities from					
Continuing Operations		(6)	(10)		(16)
•		•			
Cash Flows from Financing Activities from					
Continuing Operations:					
Borrowings of debt	1				1
Payments of debt	(8)	(3)			(11)
Discount paid on issuance of debt	(12)				(12)
Debt issuance costs paid	(5)				(5)
Shareholders dividends		(5)	(5)	10	
Net intercompany advances	12	(52)	40		
Net Cash (Used for) Provided from Financing					
Activities from Continuing Operations	(12)	(60)	35	10	(27)
2 1	,	,			` /
Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations:					
Cash used for operating activities	(1)		(33)		(34)
Cash used for investing activities			(10)		(10)
Cash used for financing activities			(2)		(2)
Net Cash Used for Discontinued Operations	(1)		(45)		(46)
·					
Cash (Decrease) Increase During the Period	(79)	3	10		(66)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period	\$ 238	\$ 10	\$ 98	\$	\$ 346
-					

#### Table of Contents

#### ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following information should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this report. The following discussion may contain forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include those factors discussed below and elsewhere in this report, particularly in Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.

#### Overview

Our core services include termite and pest control, home warranties, disaster restoration, janitorial, residential cleaning, furniture repair and home inspection under the following leading brands: Terminix, American Home Shield, ServiceMaster Restore, ServiceMaster Clean, Merry Maids, Furniture Medic and AmeriSpec. Our operations for the periods presented in this report are organized into four principal reportable segments: Terminix, American Home Shield, Franchise Services Group and Other Operations and Headquarters.

#### **Key Business Metrics**

We focus on a variety of indicators and key operating and financial metrics to monitor the financial condition and performance of the continuing operations of our businesses. These metrics include:

- customer retention rates,
- customer counts growth,
- operating revenue,
- operating expenses,
- net (loss) income, and

#### Adjusted EBITDA.

To the extent applicable, these measures are evaluated with and without impairment, restructuring and other charges that management believes are not indicative of the earnings capabilities of our businesses. We also focus on measures designed to optimize cash flow, including the management of working capital and capital expenditures.

Customer Retention Rates and Customer Counts Growth. We report our customer retention rates and growth in customer counts for our two largest revenue generating businesses in order to track the performance of those businesses. Customer counts represent our recurring customer base and include customers with active contracts for recurring services. At Terminix, these services are primarily delivered on an annual, quarterly or monthly frequency. Retention rates are calculated as the ratio of ending customer counts to the sum of beginning customer counts, new sales and acquired accounts for the applicable period. These measures are presented on a rolling, twelve-month basis in order to avoid seasonal anomalies. See Segment Review.

Operating Revenue. Our operating revenue results are primarily a function of the volume and pricing of the services and products provided to our customers by our businesses as well as the mix of services and products provided across our businesses. The volume of our operating revenue in the Terminix and American Home Shield segments, and in our company-owned branches in the Merry Maids business, is impacted by new unit sales, the retention of our existing customers and tuck-in acquisitions. Operating revenue results in our franchise operations in the Franchise Services Group segment are driven principally by royalty fees earned from our franchisees. We serve both residential and commercial customers, principally in the United States. Approximately 98 percent of our annual operating revenue is generated by sales in the United States.

*Operating Expenses.* In addition to the impact of changes in our operating revenue results, our operating results are affected by, among other things, the level of our operating expenses. A number of our operating expenses are subject to inflationary pressures, such as fuel, chemicals, raw materials, wages and salaries, employee benefits and health care, vehicle, self-insurance costs and other insurance premiums, as well as various regulatory compliance costs.

Adjusted EBITDA. We evaluate performance and allocate resources based primarily on Adjusted EBITDA. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) before: income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes;

#### **Table of Contents**

provision (benefit) for income taxes; gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt; interest expense; depreciation and amortization expense; non-cash goodwill and trade name impairment; non-cash impairment of software and other related costs; non-cash impairment of property and equipment; non-cash stock-based compensation expense; restructuring charges; management and consulting fees; and non-cash effects attributable to the application of purchase accounting. We believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful for investors, analysts and other interested parties as it facilitates company-to-company operating performance comparisons by excluding potential differences caused by variations in capital structures, taxation, the age and book depreciation of facilities and equipment, restructuring initiatives, consulting agreements and equity-based, long-term incentive plans.

#### Seasonality

We have seasonality in our business, which drives fluctuations in operating revenue and Adjusted EBITDA for interim periods. In 2013, approximately 22 percent, 28 percent, 27 percent and 23 percent of our operating revenue and approximately 23 percent, 29 percent, 28 percent and 20 percent of our Adjusted EBITDA was recognized in the first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively.

#### **Effect of Weather Conditions**

The demand for our services and our results of operations are also affected by weather conditions, including the seasonal nature of our termite and pest control services, home inspection services and disaster restoration services. Weather conditions which have a potentially unfavorable impact to our business include cooler temperatures or droughts which can impede the development of termite swarms and lead to lower demand for our termite control services; severe winter storms which can impact our home cleaning business if we cannot travel to service locations due to hazardous road conditions; and extreme temperatures which can lead to an increase in service requests related to household systems and appliances, resulting in higher claim frequency and costs. Weather conditions which have a potentially favorable impact to our business include mild winters which can lead to higher demand for termite and pest control services; mild winters or summers which can lead to lower household systems and appliance claim frequency; and severe storms which can lead to an increase in demand for disaster restoration services.

## TruGreen Spin-off

On January 14, 2014, we completed the TruGreen Spin-off. As a result of the completion of the TruGreen Spin-off, New TruGreen operates the TruGreen Business as a private independent company. In connection with the TruGreen Spin-off, the Company and TGLP entered into a transition services agreement pursuant to which the Company and its subsidiaries provide TGLP with specified communications, public relations, finance and accounting, tax, treasury, internal audit, human resources operations and benefits, risk management and insurance, supply management, real estate management, marketing, facilities, information technology and other support services. The charges for the transition services allow the Company to fully recover the allocated direct costs of providing the services, plus specified margins and any out-of-pocket costs and expenses. The services provided under the transition services agreement will terminate at various specified times, and in no event later than January 14, 2016 (except certain information technology services, which the Company expects to provide to TGLP beyond the two-year period). TGLP may terminate the transition services agreement (or certain services under the transition services agreement) for convenience upon 90-days written notice, in which case TGLP will be required to reimburse ServiceMaster for early termination costs.

In addition, the Company, Holdings, New TruGreen and TGLP entered into (1) a separation and distribution agreement containing key provisions relating to the separation of the TruGreen Business and the distribution of New TruGreen common stock to Holdings—stockholders (including relating to specified TruGreen legal matters with respect to which we have agreed to retain liability, as well as insurance coverage, non-competition, indemnification and other matters), (2) an employee matters agreement allocating liabilities and responsibilities relating to employee benefit plans and programs and other related matters and (3) a tax matters agreement governing the respective rights, responsibilities and obligations of the parties thereto with respect to taxes, including allocating liabilities for income taxes attributable to New TruGreen and its subsidiaries generally to the Company for tax periods (or portions thereof) ending on or before January 14, 2014 and generally to New TruGreen for tax periods (or portions thereof) beginning after that date.

Under this transition services agreement, in the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded \$10 million of fees due from TGLP, which is included, net of costs incurred, in Selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. As of March 31, 2014, all amounts owed by TGLP under this agreement have been paid.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company processed certain of TGLP s accounts payable transactions. Through this process, in the three months ended March 31, 2014, \$44 million was paid on TGLP s behalf, of which \$41 million was repaid by TGLP. As of March 31, 2014, the Company recorded a \$3 million receivable due from TGLP, which is included in Receivables on the condensed consolidated statement of financial position.

#### **Results of Operations**

	Three months ended March 31,			Increase (Decrease)	% of Operating Revenue	
(In millions)	2014	ŕ	2013	2014 vs. 2013	2014	2013
Operating Revenue	\$ 533	\$	514	3.7%	100.0%	100.0%
Cost of services rendered and products sold	288		270	6.6	54.0	52.5
Selling and administrative expenses	151		158	(4.4)	28.4	30.8
Amortization expense	13		13	0.8	2.4	2.5
Impairment of software and other related costs	48			*	9.0	
Restructuring charges	5		3	55.6	0.9	0.6
Interest expense	61		60	1.9	11.5	11.7
Interest and net investment income	(6)		(2)	146.4	(1.0)	(0.4)
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations before Income						
Taxes	(27)		12	*	(5.1)	2.4
(Benefit) Provision for income taxes	(9)		6	*	(1.7)	1.2
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations	(18)		6	*	(3.4)	1.3
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	(95)		(29)	*	(17.8)	(5.7)
Net Loss	\$ (113)	\$	(23)	*	(21.2)%	(4.5)%

<sup>\*</sup> not meaningful

## Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013

Operating Revenue

We reported operating revenue of \$533 million for the first quarter of 2014, a \$19 million or 3.7 percent increase compared to the first quarter of 2013. A summary of changes in operating revenue for each of our reporting segments is included in the table below. See Segment Review for a discussion of the drivers of the year over year changes.

(In millions)	Terminix	American Home Shield	Franchise Services Group	Other Operations and Headquarters	Total
Three months ended March 31, 2013	\$ 313	\$ 143	\$ 56	\$ 2	\$ 514
Pest Control	3				3
Termite	4				4
Home Warranties(1)		8			8
Franchise-Related Revenue			4		4
Three months ended March 31, 2014	\$ 320	\$ 151	\$ 60	\$ 2	\$ 533

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes approximately \$5 million as a result of the acquisition of HSA on February 28, 2014.

Cost of Services Rendered and Products Sold

We reported cost of services rendered and products sold of \$288 million and \$270 million for the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively. The following table provides a summary of changes in cost of services rendered and products sold for the first quarter of 2014 compared with the first quarter of 2013 for each of our reporting segments:

			A	American Home	Franchise Services	•	Other perations and	
(In millions)	Te	rminix		Shield	Group	H	eadquarters	Total
Three months ended March 31,								
2013	\$	171	\$	71	\$ 24	\$	4 \$	270
Change in operating revenue		3		4	3			10
Contract claims				4				4
Insurance program							2	2
Labor efficiency		1						1
Other		1		(1)	2		(1)	1
Three months ended March 31,								
2014	\$	176	\$	78	\$ 29	\$	5 \$	288

Favorable adjustments to reserves for prior year contract claims of \$1 million and \$5 million were recorded at American Home Shield in the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase in expenses in our automobile, general liability and workers compensation insurance program was driven by adverse claims trends. The decrease in labor efficiency at Terminix was primarily driven by increased staffing in customer care centers to improve service levels.

#### **Table of Contents**

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased \$7 million to \$151 million for the first quarter of 2014 compared to \$158 million for the first quarter of 2013. A \$3 million reduction in tax-related reserves was recorded in the first quarter of 2013 for which there was no similar adjustment recorded in the first quarter of 2014. The remaining decrease of \$10 million primarily reflected a decrease in costs in our centers of excellence driven by the transition of certain costs to New TruGreen and other cost reductions realized through recent initiatives discussed further under Restructuring Charges below; and a decrease in technology costs at American Home Shield driven by the decision to abandon its efforts to deploy a new operating system.

Amortization Expense

Our portfolio of intangible assets has remained relatively stable, and, as a result, amortization expense was \$13 million in the first quarter of 2014 and 2013.

Impairment of Software and Other Related Costs

The Company recorded an impairment charge of \$48 million in the first quarter of 2014 relating to its decision to abandon its efforts to deploy a new operating system at American Home Shield. This decision will allow us to more effectively focus our energy and resources on driving growth and serving our customers. Included in this charge are the impairment of the capitalized software of \$45 million and the recognition of the remaining liabilities associated with the termination of lease, maintenance and hosting agreements totaling \$3 million.

Restructuring Charges

We incurred restructuring charges of \$5 million and \$3 million for the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively. Restructuring charges were comprised of the following:

		Three months ended					
		March 31,					
(In millions)	2014			2013			
Terminix branch optimization(1)	\$	1	\$		1		
Centers of excellence initiative(2)		4			2		
Total restructuring charges	\$	5	\$		3		

<sup>(1)</sup> For the three months ended March 31, 2014, these charges included severance costs. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, these charges included lease termination costs.

(2) Represents restructuring charges related to an initiative to enhance capabilities and reduce costs in the Company s headquarters functions that provide Company-wide administrative services for our operations that we refer to as centers of excellence. For the three months ended March 31, 2014, these charges included professional fees of \$1 million and severance and other costs of \$3 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, these charges included professional fees of \$1 million and severance and other costs of \$1 million. During the remainder of 2014, we will continue to assess the mix and cost of our Company-wide administrative services in light of the TruGreen Spin-off. We do not expect additional charges related to this initiative to be significant.

Interest Expense

Interest expense totaled \$61 million and \$60 million for the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our average long-term debt balance and average interest rate for the first quarter of 2014 were comparable to the first quarter of 2013.

Interest and Net Investment Income

Interest and net investment income totaled \$6 million and \$2 million for the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively, and was comprised of the following:

	Three months ended				
		Mar	ch 31,		
(In millions)		2014		2013	
Realized gains(1)	\$	5	\$		1
Deferred compensation trust(2)					1
Other(3)		1			
Total interest and net investment income	\$	6	\$		2
	31				

#### Table of Contents

- (1) Represents the net investment gains and the interest and dividend income realized on the American Home Shield investment portfolio.
- (2) Represents investment income resulting from a change in the market value of investments within an employee deferred compensation trust (for which there is a corresponding and offsetting change in compensation expense within income from continuing operations before income taxes).
- (3) Includes interest income on other cash balances.

(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes was \$27 million for the first quarter of 2014 compared to income from continuing operations before income taxes of \$12 million for the first quarter of 2013. The decrease in income from continuing operations before income taxes for the first quarter of 2014 compared to the first quarter of 2013 of \$39 million primarily reflects the net effect of year over year changes in the following items:

(In millions)	2014 Compared to 2013
Segment results(1)	\$ 12
Impairment of software and other related costs(2)	(48)
Restructuring charges(3)	(2)
Interest expense(4)	(1)
	\$ (39)

- (1) Represents the net change in Adjusted EBITDA as described in Segment Review.
- (2) Represents a \$48 million impairment of software and other related costs at American Home Shield recorded in the first quarter of 2014 as described in Impairment of Software and Other Related Costs.
- (3) Represents the net change in restructuring charges related primarily to the impact of a branch optimization project at Terminix and an initiative to enhance capabilities and reduce costs in our centers of excellence at Other Operations and Headquarters. Our centers of excellence are functions at our headquarters that provide Company-wide administrative services for our operations. See Restructuring Charges for further details.

(4)	Represents the net change in interest expense as described in I	nterest Expense.
(Benefi	ũt) Provision for Income Taxes	
provision including TruGree disconti		te for the first quarter of 2014 was impacted by various discrete events, the Company s state apportionment factors primarily attributable to the impacted by the reclassification of the TruGreen Business to
Net Los	iss .	
primari	ss for the first quarter of 2014 was \$113 million compared to \$23 million decrease in income from continuing ope tinued operations, net of tax, offset, in part, by a \$15 million increases	erations before income taxes and a \$66 million increase in loss from
	32	

#### Table of Contents

#### **Segment Review**

The following business segment reviews should be read in conjunction with the required footnote disclosures presented in the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in this report.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed the composition of its reportable segments. Merry Maids, previously reported within the Other Operations and Headquarters segment, is now combined with ServiceMaster Clean and reported together as the Franchise Services Group segment. The composition of our reportable segments is consistent with that used by our CODM to evaluate performance and allocate resources. The changes in the composition of the Company s reportable segments have been reflected in the historical results for all periods presented herein.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed its methodology for allocating general corporate overhead expenses. In prior periods, allocations were limited to corporate support services incurred directly on behalf of each reportable segment. Under the revised method, certain expenses related to general corporate support services previously reflected in the Other Operations and Headquarters segment are now allocated to each reportable segment. This change has no impact to the Company s consolidated net income or Adjusted EBITDA.

Operating Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA by operating segment are as follows:

		ed	Increase (Decrease)
2014		2013	2014 vs. 2013
\$ 320	\$	313	2.2%
151		143	5.5%
60		56	8.1%
2		2	(5.7)%
\$ 533	\$	514	3.7%
\$ 78	\$	75	3.6%
23		21	9.0%
18		17	1.5%
(4)		(10)	66.2%
\$ 115	\$	103	11.6%
\$	\$ 320 151 60 2 \$ 533 \$ 78 23 18 (4)	\$ 320 \$ 151 60 2 \$ 533 \$ \$ \$ 23 18 (4)	\$ 320 \$ 313 151 143 60 56 2 2 \$ 533 \$ 514 \$ 78 \$ 75 23 21 18 17 (4) (10)

<sup>(1)</sup> See Note 14 for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA and reconciliation thereof to net loss.

The table below presents selected operating metrics related to customer counts and customer retention for our Terminix and American Home Shield segments.

	As of March 31,		
	2014	2013	
Terminix			
Reduction in Pest Control Customers	(1.8)%	(0.5)%	
Pest Control Customer Retention Rate	79.1%	78.8%	
Reduction in Termite Customers	(2.6)%	(1.9)%	
Termite Customer Retention Rate	84.9%	85.4%	
American Home Shield			
Growth (Reduction) in Home Warranties(1),(2)	10.3%	(2.4)%	
Customer Retention Rate(1),(2)	75.9%	73.5%	

<sup>(1)</sup> As of March 31, 2014, excluding the impact of the HSA acquisition, the growth in home warranties and the customer retention rate for our American Home Shield segment was 0.8 percent and 74.5 percent, respectively.

<sup>(2)</sup> The operating metrics related to customer counts and customer retention for our American Home Shield segment have been refined to exclude preventative maintenance customers as this service is no longer being offered by the Company.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Terminix Segment

First Quarter of 2014 Compared to First Quarter of 2013

The Terminix segment, which provides termite and pest control services to residential and commercial customers and distributes pest control products, reported a 2.2 percent increase in operating revenue and a 3.6 percent increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared to the first quarter of 2013.

Operating Revenue

Operating Revenue by service line is as follows:

	Three months ended March 31,				% of Operating Revenue	
(In millions)		2014			2013	2014
Pest Control	\$		176	\$	173	54.9%
Termite			132		128	41.2%
Other			12		12	3.9%
Total operating revenue	\$		320	\$	313	100.0%

Pest control revenue increased 1.6 percent compared to the first quarter of 2013, reflecting improved price realization, offset, in part, by a 1.8 percent decrease in pest control customer counts. The decrease in pest control customer counts as of March 31, 2014 compared to March 31, 2013 was driven by a decrease in new unit sales and acquisitions, offset, in part, by a 30 bps increase in the customer retention rate.

Termite revenue, including the wildlife exclusion, crawl space encapsulation and attic insulation products which are managed as a component of our termite line of business, increased 3.4 percent compared to the first quarter of 2013. Termite renewal revenue comprised 60 percent of total termite revenue, while the remainder consisted of termite new unit revenue. The increase in termite revenue reflects introductions of new products (wildlife exclusion and crawlspace encapsulation), increased sales of attic insulation and improved price realization, offset, in part, by a decrease in traditional termite sales driven by colder weather conditions. Termite customer counts decreased 2.6 percent compared to March 31, 2013, driven by a decrease in traditional new unit sales and acquisitions and a 50 bps decrease in the customer retention rate, offset, in part, by the introduction of new products.

#### Adjusted EBITDA

The following table provides a summary of changes in the segment s Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared with the first quarter of 2013:

(In millions)	
Three months ended March 31, 2013	\$ 75
Change in operating revenue	4
Labor efficiency	(1)
Selling and administrative expenses	1
Other	(1)
Three months ended March 31, 2014	\$ 78

The decrease in labor efficiency was primarily driven by increased staffing in customer care centers. The decrease in selling and administrative expenses was driven by cost reductions achieved in the quarter.

Table of Contents
American Home Shield Segment
First Quarter of 2014 Compared to First Quarter of 2013
The American Home Shield segment, which provides home warranties for household systems and appliances, reported a 5.5 percent increase in operating revenue and a 9.0 percent increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared to the first quarter of 2013. On February 28, 2014, we acquired HSA, a company with 2013 revenue of approximately \$62 million.
Operating Revenue
As of March 31, 2014 compared to March 31, 2013, customer counts increased 10.3 percent, and the customer retention rate increased 240 bps. Excluding HSA, for the same period, customer counts increased 0.8 percent, and the customer retention rate increased 100 bps. The operating revenue results reflect the 0.8 percent increase in customer counts and improved price realization, primarily driven by a favorable product mix. Additionally, the HSA acquisition contributed approximately \$5 million in revenue in the first quarter of 2014.
Impairment of Software and Other Related Costs
In February 2014, American Home Shield made the decision to abandon its efforts to deploy a new operating system. This decision will allow uto more effectively focus our energy and resources on driving growth and serving our customers. Important factors that led to this decision include:
• the ongoing operational costs of the new operating system would have been high;
• plans to achieve economies of scale by expanding the technology beyond American Home Shield to other business units were adversely impacted by the TruGreen Spin-off;
• enhancements to our existing operating system enabled it to support our needs;
• certain planned benefits of the new operating system can be achieved through other means; and

we will now be able to invest our resources in areas that will allow us to focus on growing our business.

We recorded an impairment charge of \$48 million in the first quarter of 2014 relating to this decision.

Adjusted EBITDA

The following table provides a summary of changes in the segment s Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared with the first quarter of 2013:

## (In millions) Three month

Three months ended March 31, 2013	\$ 21
Change in operating revenue	4
Interest and net investment income	4
Contract claims	(4)
Tax-related reserves	(3)
Selling and administrative expenses	1
Three months ended March 31, 2014	\$ 23

In the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, the segment s Adjusted EBITDA included interest and net investment income from the American Home Shield investment portfolio of \$5 million and \$1 million, respectively, and favorable adjustments to reserves for prior year contract claims of \$1 million and \$5 million, respectively. Additionally, a \$3 million reduction in tax-related reserves was recorded in the first quarter of 2013 for which there was no similar adjustment recorded in the first quarter of 2014. The decrease in selling and administrative expenses primarily included lower technology costs driven by the decision to abandon its efforts to deploy a new operating system, offset, in part, by the addition of administrative costs as a result of the acquisition of HSA.

#### Table of Contents

#### Franchise Services Group Segment

First Quarter of 2014 Compared to First Quarter of 2013

The Franchise Services Group segment, which consists of the ServiceMaster Restore (disaster restoration), ServiceMaster Clean (janitorial), Merry Maids (residential cleaning), Furniture Medic (furniture repair) and AmeriSpec (home inspection) businesses, reported an 8.1 percent increase in operating revenue and a 1.5 percent increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared to the first quarter of 2013.

Operating Revenue

Operating Revenue by service line is as follows:

	Three months ended March 31,			% of Operating Revenue		
(In millions)	2014		2013	2014		
Royalty Fees	\$ 29	\$	28	47.3%		
Company-Owned Merry Maids Branches	15		15	24.5%		
Janitorial National Accounts	7		5	11.9%		
Sales of Products	7		5	10.9%		
Other	2		3	5.4%		
Total operating revenue	\$ 60	\$	56	100.0%		

Royalty fees increased 3.1 percent compared to the first quarter of 2013, primarily driven by increases in disaster restoration services. Revenue from company-owned Merry Maids branches was comparable to the first quarter of 2013 with customer counts as of March 31, 2014 comparable to March 31, 2013. Revenue from janitorial national accounts increased 44.0 percent compared to the first quarter of 2013, driven by strong sales activity. Sales of products to franchisees increased 40.4 percent compared to the first quarter of 2013, driven by high franchisee demand for equipment.

#### Adjusted EBITDA

The following table provides a summary of changes in the segment s Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared with the first quarter of 2013:

# (In millions) Three months ended March 31, 2013 \$ 17 Change in operating revenue 1

Three months ended March 31, 2014	\$	18
Thice months chief March 31, 2017	Ψ	10

The impact of the increase in operating revenue was driven by the increase in royalty fees and increases in relatively low margin revenue from janitorial national accounts and sales of products to franchisees.

#### Other Operations and Headquarters Segment

First Quarter of 2014 Compared to First Quarter of 2013

This segment includes SMAC and our headquarters functions. The segment reported a 66.2 percent increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared to the first quarter of 2013.

#### Adjusted EBITDA

(T-- ---:11:----)

The following table provides a summary of changes in the segment s Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2014 compared with the first quarter of 2013:

(In millions)	
Three months ended March 31, 2013	\$ (10)
Insurance program	(2)
Selling and administrative expenses	8
Three months ended March 31, 2014	\$ (4)

36

#### **Table of Contents**

The increased expenses in our automobile, general liability and workers compensation insurance program was driven by adverse claims trends. The decrease in selling and administrative expenses primarily included decreased costs in our centers of excellence driven by the transition of certain costs to New TruGreen and other cost reductions realized through recent initiatives.

#### **Discontinued Operations**

On January 14, 2014, we completed the TruGreen Spin-off resulting in the spin-off of the assets and certain liabilities of the TruGreen Business through a tax-free, pro rata dividend to Holdings—stockholders. As a result of the completion of the TruGreen Spin-off, New TruGreen operates the TruGreen Business as a private independent company. The TruGreen Business experienced a significant downturn in recent years. Since 2011, the TruGreen Business lost 400,000 customers, or 19 percent of its customer base. The TruGreen Business—s operating margins also eroded during this time-frame due to production inefficiencies, higher chemical costs and inflationary pressures, compounded by lower fixed cost leverage as falling customer counts drove revenue down. The TruGreen Business experienced operating revenue and Adjusted EBITDA declines of 18.6 percent and 87.6 percent, respectively, from 2011 to 2013. In light of these developments, we made the decision to effect the TruGreen Spin-off, which we expect will enable the Company—s management to increase its focus on Terminix, American Home Shield and the Franchise Services Group segment while providing New TruGreen, as an independently operated, private company, the time and focus required to execute a turnaround. In addition, the TruGreen Spin-off was effected to enhance Holdings—ability to complete an IPO of its common stock, the proceeds of which are expected to be used to reduce consolidated indebtedness.

As a result of the TruGreen Spin-off, we were required to perform an interim impairment analysis as of January 14, 2014 on the TruGreen trade name. The assumptions were developed with the view of the TruGreen Business as a stand-alone company, resulting in an increase in the assumed discount rate of 350 bps as compared to the discount rate used in the October 1, 2013 impairment test for the TruGreen trade name. This interim impairment analysis resulted in a pre-tax non-cash trade name impairment charge of \$139 million (\$84 million, net of tax) to reduce the carrying value of the TruGreen trade name to its estimated fair value. This impairment charge was recorded in Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, in the first quarter of 2014.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for all periods presented includes the operating results of the TruGreen Business and the previously sold businesses noted in the 2013 Form 10-K.

The operating results of discontinued operations are as follows:

		Three months ended March 31,		d	
(In millions)	2014			2013	
Operating Revenue	\$	6	\$		94
Loss before income taxes(1)		(155)			(50)
Benefit for income taxes(1)		(60)			(21)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes(1)	\$	(95)	\$		(29)

<sup>(1)</sup> During the first quarter of 2014, a pre-tax non-cash trade name impairment charge of \$139 million (\$84 million, net of tax) was recorded to reduce the carrying value of the TruGreen trade name to its estimated fair value.

Table	of	Contents

#### **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

#### Liquidity

We are highly leveraged, and a substantial portion of our liquidity needs is due to service requirements on our significant indebtedness. The agreements governing the Term Facilities, the 2020 Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility contain covenants that limit or restrict the ability of ServiceMaster and certain of its subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, repurchase debt, incur liens, sell assets, make certain payments (including dividends) and enter into transactions with affiliates. As of March 31, 2014, we were in compliance with the covenants under these agreements that were in effect on such date.

Our ongoing liquidity needs are expected to be funded by cash on hand, net cash provided by operating activities and, as required, borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. We expect that cash provided from operations and available capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility will provide sufficient funds to operate our business, make expected capital expenditures and meet our liquidity requirements for the following 12 months, including payment of interest and principal on our debt. As of March 31, 2014, we had \$242 million of remaining capacity available under the Revolving Credit Facility. Our borrowing capacity will decrease to \$183 million on July 25, 2014.

Cash and short- and long-term marketable securities totaled \$534 million as of March 31, 2014, compared with \$625 million as of December 31, 2013. Cash and short- and long-term marketable securities include balances associated with regulatory requirements at American Home Shield. See Limitations on Distributions and Dividends by Subsidiaries. American Home Shield s investment portfolio has been invested in a combination of high-quality, short-duration fixed-income securities and equities. We closely monitor the performance of the investments. From time to time, we review the statutory reserve requirements to which our regulated entities are subject and any changes to such requirements. These reviews may result in identifying current reserve levels above or below minimum statutory reserve requirements, in which case may adjust our reserves. The reviews may also identify opportunities to satisfy certain regulatory reserve requirements through alternate financial vehicles.

Under the terms of our fuel swap contracts, we are required to post collateral in the event that the fair value of the contracts exceeds a certain agreed upon liability level and in other circumstances required by the counterparty. As of March 31, 2014, the estimated fair value of our fuel swap contracts was a net asset of \$1 million, and we had posted \$1 million in letters of credit as collateral under our fuel hedging program, none of which were issued under our Revolving Credit Facility. The continued use of letters of credit for this purpose could limit our ability to post letters of credit for other purposes and could limit our borrowing availability under the Revolving Credit Facility. However, we do not expect the fair value of the outstanding fuel swap contracts to materially impact our financial position or liquidity.

We may from time to time repurchase or otherwise retire or extend our debt and/or take other steps to reduce our debt or otherwise improve our financial position. These actions may include open market debt repurchases, negotiated repurchases, other retirements of outstanding debt and/or opportunistic refinancing of debt. The amount of debt that may be repurchased or otherwise retired or refinanced, if any, will depend on market conditions, trading levels of our debt, our cash position, compliance with debt covenants and other considerations. Our affiliates may also purchase our debt from time to time, through open market purchases or other transactions. In such cases, our debt may not be retired, in which case we would continue to pay interest in accordance with the terms of the debt, and we would continue to reflect the debt as outstanding in its condensed consolidated financial statements.

As of March 31, 2014, we had approximately \$2,184 million of outstanding borrowings under our Term Loan Facility, maturing January 31, 2017, after including the unamortized portion of the original issue discount paid.

Senior Notes

The 8% 2020 Notes will mature on February 15, 2020, and the 7% 2020 Notes will mature on August 15, 2020. On March 24, 2014, Holdings filed a Registration Statement on Form S-1 with the SEC for an IPO. As disclosed in such Form S-1, Holdings intends to use the net proceeds of the IPO to redeem a portion of the 8% 2020 Notes at 108% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, and redeem a portion of the 7% 2020 Notes at 107% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. No assurance can be given that the IPO will be completed and that our obligations under the 2020 Notes will be reduced as intended.

#### **Table of Contents**

Fleet and Equipment Financing Arrangements

We have entered into the Fleet Agreement which, among other things, allows us to obtain fleet vehicles through a leasing program. We expect to fulfill substantially all of our vehicle fleet needs in 2014 through the leasing program under the Fleet Agreement. For the first quarter of 2014, we acquired \$2 million of vehicles under the Fleet Agreement leasing program. All leases under the Fleet Agreement are capital leases for accounting purposes. The lease rental payments include an interest component calculated using a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR plus other contractual adjustments and a borrowing margin totaling 2.45 percent as of March 31, 2014. We have no minimum commitment for the number of vehicles to be obtained under the Fleet Agreement. We anticipate that new lease financings under the Fleet Agreement for the full year 2014 will range from approximately \$15 million to \$25 million.

Limitations on Distributions and Dividends by Subsidiaries

ServiceMaster is a holding company, and as such we have no independent operations or material assets other than ownership of equity interests in our subsidiaries. We depend on our subsidiaries to distribute funds to us so that we may pay obligations and expenses, including satisfying obligations with respect to indebtedness. The ability of our subsidiaries to make distributions and dividends to us depends on their operating results, cash requirements and financial condition and general business conditions, as well as restrictions under the laws of our subsidiaries jurisdictions.

The terms of the indenture governing the 2020 Notes and the agreements governing the Credit Facilities significantly restrict the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends, make loans or otherwise transfer assets to us. Further, our subsidiaries are permitted under the terms of the Credit Facilities and other indebtedness to incur additional indebtedness that may restrict or prohibit the making of distributions, the payment of dividends or the making of loans by such subsidiaries to us.

Furthermore, there are third-party restrictions on the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to transfer funds to us. These restrictions are related to regulatory requirements at American Home Shield and to a subsidiary borrowing arrangement at SMAC. The payment of ordinary and extraordinary dividends by our home warranty and similar subsidiaries (through which we conduct our American Home Shield business) are subject to significant regulatory restrictions under the laws and regulations of the states in which they operate. Among other things, such laws and regulations require certain such subsidiaries to maintain minimum capital and net worth requirements and may limit the amount of ordinary and extraordinary dividends and other payments that these subsidiaries can pay to us. As of March 31, 2014, the total net assets subject to these third-party restrictions was \$184 million. We expect that such limitations will be in effect through the end of 2014. None of our subsidiaries are obligated to make funds available to us through the payment of dividends.

We consider undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 to be indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, no U.S. income taxes have been provided thereon. The amount of cash associated with indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings was approximately \$29 million and \$14 million as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. We have not repatriated, nor do we anticipate the need to repatriate, funds to the United States to satisfy domestic liquidity needs arising in the ordinary course of business, including liquidity needs associated with our domestic debt service requirements.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities from Continuing Operations

Net cash provided from operating activities from continuing operations decreased \$2 million to \$21 million for the first quarter of 2014 compared to \$23 million for the first quarter of 2013.

Net cash provided from operating activities for the first quarter of 2014 was comprised of \$57 million in earnings adjusted for non-cash charges, offset, in part, by a \$33 million increase in cash required for working capital and \$3 million in cash payments related to restructuring charges. Working capital requirements for the first quarter of 2014 were adversely impacted by the timing of interest payments on the 2020 Notes, incentive compensation payments related to 2013 performance and seasonal activity.

Net cash provided from operating activities for the first quarter of 2013 was comprised of \$45 million in earnings adjusted for non-cash charges, offset, in part, by an \$18 million increase in cash required for working capital and \$4 million in cash payments related to restructuring charges. Working capital requirements for the first quarter of 2013 were adversely impacted by the timing of interest payments on the 2020 Notes, incentive compensation payments related to 2012 performance and seasonal activity.

#### Table of Contents

#### Cash Flows from Investing Activities from Continuing Operations

Net cash used for investing activities from continuing operations was \$17 million for the first quarter of 2014 compared to \$16 million for the first quarter of 2013.

Capital expenditures increased to \$14 million for the first quarter of 2014 from \$9 million in the first quarter of 2013 and included recurring capital needs and information technology projects. We anticipate that capital expenditures for the full year 2014 will range from approximately \$55 million to \$65 million, reflecting recurring needs and the continuation of investments in information systems and productivity enhancing technology. We expect to fulfill our ongoing vehicle fleet needs through vehicle capital leases. The Company has no additional material capital commitments at this time.

Cash payments for acquisitions for the first quarter of 2014 totaled \$41 million, compared with \$3 million for the first quarter of 2013. On February 28, 2014, we acquired HSA, based in Madison, Wisconsin, for cash consideration of \$32 million. Consideration paid for tuck-in acquisitions consisted of cash payments and debt payable to sellers. We expect to continue our tuck-in acquisition program at levels consistent with prior periods.

Cash flows provided from notes receivable, financial investments and securities, net, for the first quarter of 2014 were \$38 million and were primarily driven by the sale of marketable securities at American Home Shield. Cash flows used for notes receivable, financial investments and securities, net, for the first quarter of 2013 were \$4 million and were primarily driven by increased investments in marketable securities at American Home Shield, offset, in part, by collections of amounts financed by SMAC.

#### Cash Flows from Financing Activities from Continuing Operations

Net cash used for financing activities from continuing operations was \$46 million for the first quarter of 2014 compared to \$27 million for the first quarter of 2013.

During the first quarter of 2014, we made scheduled principal payments on long-term debt of \$11 million. Additionally, the Company contributed \$35 million to New TruGreen during the first quarter of 2014.

During the first quarter of 2013, we made scheduled principal payments on long-term debt of \$9 million and made payments on other long-term financing obligations of \$2 million. Additionally, the Company borrowed an incremental \$1 million, paid \$12 million in original issue discount and paid debt issuance costs of \$5 million during the first quarter of 2013.

#### Contractual Obligations

The 2013 Form 10-K includes disclosure of our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2013. We continue to make the contractually required payments, and, therefore, the 2014 obligations and commitments as listed in the 2013 Form 10-K have been reduced by the required payments. Additionally, the TruGreen Spin-off has reduced our contractual obligations and commitments as reported as of December 31, 2013. While contractual obligations relating to principal repayments, estimated interest payments, non-cancelable operating leases and other long-term liabilities of the TruGreen Business are separately identifiable and were transferred to New TruGreen pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement, purchase obligations generally relate to Company-wide spend and commitments of multiple business segments and, therefore, the obligations which were transferred to New TruGreen are more difficult to separately identify and are included in costs under the transition services agreement. We are in the process of negotiating the transfers of these contractual obligations to New TruGreen. The impact of the TruGreen Spin-off was the only material change in our previously disclosed contractual obligations and commitments during the three months ended March 31, 2014.

#### Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of March 31, 2014, we had off-balance sheet arrangements in the form of guarantees as discussed in Note 4 of our condensed consolidated financial statements.

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, established for the purpose of facilitating off- balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. Accordingly, we are not materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships.

Table of Contents

#### **Regulatory Matters**

In April 2014, the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (the CFPB) issued a Civil Investigative Demand (the CID) to American Home Shield seeking documents and information to determine whether home warranty providers or other unnamed persons have engaged or are engaging in unlawful acts and practices in connection with referral arrangements and relationships in violation of the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and its implementing regulation (RESPA) and other laws enforceable by the CFPB. American Home Shield intends to comply with its obligations to respond to the CID and believes that it has complied with RESPA and other laws applicable to American Home Shield s home warranty business. If the CFPB determines to bring an enforcement action, it could include demands for money penalties, changes to certain of American Home Shield s business practices and customer restitution or disgorgement.

#### **Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements**

This report contains forward-looking statements and cautionary statements. Some of the forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terms such as believes, expects, may, will, shall, should, would, could, seeks, is optim anticipates or other comparable terms. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, all matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout this report and include, without limitation, statements regarding our intentions, beliefs, assumptions or current expectations concerning, among other things, financial position; results of operations; cash flows; prospects; growth strategies or expectations; customer retention; the continuation of acquisitions, including the integration of any acquired company and risks relating to any such acquired company; fuel prices; attraction and retention of key personnel; the impact of fuel swaps; the valuation of marketable securities; estimates of accruals for self-insured claims related to workers compensation, auto and general liability risks; estimates of accruals for home warranty claims; estimates of future payments under operating and capital leases; the outcome (by judgment or settlement) and costs of legal or administrative proceedings, including, without limitation, collective, representative or class action litigation; and the impact of prevailing economic conditions.

Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which may be beyond our control. We caution you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance or outcomes and that actual performance and outcomes, including, without limitation, our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the market segments in which we operate, may differ materially from those made in or suggested by the forward-looking statements contained in this report. In addition, even if our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows, and the development of the market segments in which we operate, are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this report, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods. A number of important factors, including, without limitation, the risks and uncertainties discussed in Risk Factors in this report, could cause actual results and outcomes to differ materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. Additional factors that could cause actual results and outcomes to differ from those reflected in forward-looking statements include, without limitation:

- weakening general economic conditions, especially as they may affect home sales, unemployment and consumer confidence or spending levels;
- our ability to successfully implement our business strategies;

•	our recognition of future impairment charges;
• leading to	adverse credit and financial markets impeding access, increasing financing costs or causing our customers to incur liquidity issues some of our services not being purchased or cancelled;
•	increases in prices for fuel and raw materials;
•	changes in the source and intensity of competition in our market segments;
•	adverse weather conditions;
• workers ar	our ability to attract and retain key personnel, including our ability to attract, retain and maintain positive relations with trained and third-party contractors;
•	our franchisees and third-party distributors and vendors taking actions that harm our business;
• customers:	disruptions or failures in our information technology systems and our failure to protect the security of personal information about our
•	changes in our services or products;
•	our ability to protect our intellectual property and other material proprietary rights;
	41

## Table of Contents

•	negative reputational and financial impacts resulting from future acquisitions or strategic transactions;
•	laws and governmental regulations and legal proceedings and investigations increasing our legal and regulatory expenses;
•	compliance with, or violation of, environmental, health and safety laws and regulations;
•	increases in interest rates increasing the cost of servicing our substantial indebtedness;
•	increased borrowing costs due to lowering or withdrawal of the ratings, outlook or watch assigned to our debt securities;
•	restrictions contained in our debt agreements;
•	our ability to refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness or obtain additional financing; and
•	other factors described in this report and from time to time in documents that we file with the SEC.
forward-loof the date or cautiona	d read this report completely and with the understanding that actual future results may be materially different from expectations. All oking statements made in this report are qualified by these cautionary statements. These forward-looking statements are made only as of this report, and we do not undertake any obligation, other than as may be required by law, to update or revise any forward-looking ary statements to reflect changes in assumptions, the occurrence of events, unanticipated or otherwise, and changes in future operating r time or otherwise.
	ns of results for current and any prior periods are not intended to express any future trends, or indications of future performance, ressed as such, and should only be viewed as historical data.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The economy and its impact on discretionary consumer spending, labor wages, fuel prices and other material costs, home resales, unemployment rates, insurance costs and medical costs could have a material adverse impact on future results of operations.

We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. We have entered into specific financial arrangements, primarily fuel swap agreements, and in the past interest rate swap agreements, in the normal course of business to manage certain market risks, with a policy of matching positions and limiting the terms of contracts to relatively short durations. The effect of derivative financial instrument transactions could have a material impact on our financial statements.

#### Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and manage this exposure through the use of variable-rate and fixed-rate debt. In our opinion, the market risk associated with debt obligations and other significant instruments as of March 31, 2014 has not materially changed from December 31, 2013 (see Item 7A of the 2013 Form 10-K).

#### Fuel Price Risk

We are exposed to market risk for changes in fuel prices through the consumption of fuel by our vehicle fleet in the delivery of services to our customers. We expect to use approximately 11 million gallons of fuel in 2014. A ten percent change in fuel prices would result in a change of approximately \$4 million in our annual fuel cost before considering the impact of fuel swap contracts. Our exposure to changes in fuel prices has not significantly changed our per gallon fuel costs since December 31, 2013.

We use fuel swap contracts to mitigate the financial impact of fluctuations in fuel prices. We do not enter into these contracts for trading or speculative purposes. As of March 31, 2014, we had fuel swap contracts to pay fixed prices for fuel with an aggregate notional amount of \$21 million, maturing through 2014. The estimated fair value of these contracts as of March 31, 2014 was a net asset of \$1 million. These fuel swap contracts provide a fixed price for approximately 68 percent of our estimated fuel usage for the remainder of 2014.

#### Table of Contents

#### ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

**Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.** ServiceMaster s Chief Executive Officer, Robert J. Gillette, and ServiceMaster s Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Alan J. M. Haughie, have evaluated ServiceMaster s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Messrs. Gillette and Haughie have concluded that both the design and operation of ServiceMaster s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2014.

**Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.** No change in ServiceMaster s internal control over financial reporting occurred during the first quarter of 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, ServiceMaster s internal control over financial reporting.

#### PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

#### ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of conducting business activities, ServiceMaster and its subsidiaries become involved in judicial, administrative and regulatory proceedings involving both private parties and governmental authorities. These proceedings include insured and uninsured matters that are brought on an individual, collective, representative and class action basis, or other proceedings involving regulatory, employment, general and commercial liability, automobile liability, wage and hour, environmental and other matters. We have entered into settlement agreements in certain cases, including with respect to putative collective and class actions, which are subject to court or other approvals. If one or more of our settlements are not finally approved, we could have additional or different exposure, which could be material. At this time, we do not expect any of these proceedings to have a material effect on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows; however, we can give no assurance that the results of any such proceedings will not materially affect our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

#### ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company encourages you to read carefully all of the risks and uncertainties described below, as well as other information included in this report, including our consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing in this report. The risks described below are not the only ones facing us. The occurrence of any of the following risks or additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial could materially and adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows. This report also contains forward-looking statements and estimates that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of specific factors, including the risks and uncertainties described below.

#### Risks Related to Our Business and Our Industry

Weakening in general economic conditions, especially as they may affect home sales, unemployment or consumer confidence or spending levels, may adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

A substantial portion of our results of operations is dependent upon spending by consumers. Deterioration in general economic conditions and consumer confidence, particularly in California, Texas and Florida, which collectively represented approximately one-third of our 2013 operating revenue in our Terminix and American Home Shield segments, could affect the demand for our services. Consumer spending and confidence tend to decline during times of declining economic conditions. A worsening of macroeconomic indicators, including weak home sales, higher home foreclosures, declining consumer confidence or rising unemployment rates, could adversely affect consumer spending levels, reduce the demand for our services and adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. These factors could also negatively impact the timing or the ultimate collection of accounts receivable, which would adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We may not successfully implement our business strategies, including achieving our growth objectives.

We may not be able to fully implement our business strategies or realize, in whole or in part within the expected time frames, the anticipated benefits of our various growth or other initiatives. Our various business strategies and initiatives, including growth of our customer base, introduction of new service offerings, geographic expansion, growth of our

#### Table of Contents

commercial business and enhancement of profitability, are subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control.

In addition, we may incur certain costs to achieve efficiency improvements and growth in our business and we may not meet anticipated implementation timetables or stay within budgeted costs. As these efficiency improvement and growth initiatives are undertaken, we may not fully achieve our expected cost savings and efficiency improvements or growth rates, or these initiatives could adversely impact our customer retention or our operations. Also, our business strategies may change from time to time in light of our ability to implement our new business initiatives, competitive pressures, economic uncertainties or developments, or other factors.

We may be required to recognize additional impairment charges.

We have significant amounts of goodwill and intangible assets, such as trade names, and have incurred impairment charges in 2013 and earlier periods with respect to goodwill and intangible assets. In the first quarter of 2014 we incurred impairment charges with respect to fixed assets, and we have also incurred impairment charges in the past in connection with our disposition activities. In accordance with applicable accounting standards, goodwill and intangible assets that are not amortized are subject to assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value based test annually, or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment, including:

- significant adverse changes in the business climate, including economic or financial conditions;
- significant adverse changes in expected operating results;
- adverse actions or assessments by regulators;
- unanticipated competition;
- loss of key personnel; and
- a current expectation that it is more likely than not that a reporting unit or intangible asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of.

In each of the past three years based on lower projected revenue and operating results for TruGreen, we recorded pre-tax non-cash impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of TruGreen s goodwill and the TruGreen trade name, respectively, as a result of our interim or annual

impairment testing of indefinite-lived intangible assets. These charges were \$418 million and \$256 million, respectively in 2013, and \$790 million and \$119 million, respectively, in 2012.

As a result of the TruGreen Spin-off, we performed an interim impairment analysis as of January 14, 2014 on the TruGreen trade name. The assumptions used in this analysis were based on the TruGreen Business as a standalone company, and resulted in an impairment charge of \$139 million during the first quarter of 2014.

In February 2014, American Home Shield ceased efforts to deploy a new operating system that had been intended to improve customer relationship management capabilities and enhance its operations. We recorded an impairment charge of \$48 million in the first quarter of 2014 relating to this decision.

Based upon future economic and financial market conditions, the operating performance of our reporting units and other factors, including those listed above, future impairment charges could be incurred. It is possible that such impairment, if required, could be material. Any future impairment charges that we are required to record could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations.

Adverse credit and financial market events and conditions could, among other things, impede access to or increase the cost of financing or cause our commercial and governmental customers to incur liquidity issues that could lead to some of our services not being purchased or being cancelled, or result in reduced operating revenue and lower Adjusted EBITDA, any of which could have an adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Disruptions in credit or financial markets could, among other things, lead to impairment charges, make it more difficult for us to obtain, or increase our cost of obtaining, financing for our operations or investments or to refinance our indebtedness, cause our lenders to depart from prior credit industry practice and not give technical or other waivers under the Credit Facilities, to the extent we may seek them in the future, thereby causing us to be in default under one or more of the

#### Table of Contents

Credit Facilities. These disruptions also could cause our commercial customers to encounter liquidity issues that could lead to some of our services being cancelled or reduced, or that could result in an increase in the time it takes our customers to pay us, or that could lead to a decrease in pricing for our services and products, any of which could adversely affect our accounts receivable, among other things, and, in turn, increase our working capital needs. Volatile swings in the commercial real estate segment could also impact the demand for our services as landlords cut back on services provided to their tenants. In addition, adverse developments at federal, state and local levels associated with budget deficits resulting from economic conditions could result in federal, state and local governments decreasing their purchasing of our products or services and/or increasing taxes or other fees on businesses, including us, to generate more tax revenues, which could negatively impact spending by commercial customers and municipalities on our services.

Our market segments are highly competitive. Competition could reduce our share of the market segments served by us and adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We operate in highly competitive market segments. Changes in the source and intensity of competition in the market segments served by us impact the demand for our services and may also result in additional pricing pressures. The relatively low capital cost of entry into certain of our business categories has led to strong competitive market segments, including competition from smaller regional and local owner-operated companies. Regional and local competitors operating in a limited geographic area may have lower labor, benefits and overhead costs. The principal methods of competition in our businesses include name recognition, quality and speed of service, customer satisfaction, reputation and pricing. We may be unable to compete successfully against current or future competitors, and the competitive pressures that we face may result in reduced market segment share, reduced pricing or adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Weather conditions and seasonality affect the demand for our services and our results of operations and cash flows.

The demand for our services and our results of operations are affected by weather conditions, including, without limitation, potential impacts, if any, from climate change, known and unknown, and by the seasonal nature of our termite and pest control services, home inspection services, home warranties and disaster restoration services. Adverse weather conditions (e.g., cooler temperatures or droughts), whether created by climate change factors or otherwise, can impede the development of the termite swarm and lead to lower demand for our termite remediation services. Severe winter storms can also impact our home cleaning business if personnel cannot travel to service locations due to hazardous road conditions. In addition, extreme temperatures can lead to an increase in service requests related to household systems and appliances in our American Home Shield business, resulting in higher claim frequency and costs and lower profitability, thereby adversely impacting our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Increases in raw material prices, fuel prices and other operating costs could adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Our financial performance is affected by the level of our operating expenses, such as fuel, chemicals, refrigerants, appliances and equipment, parts, raw materials, wages and salaries, employee benefits, health care, vehicle maintenance, self-insurance costs and other insurance premiums as well as various regulatory compliance costs, all of which may be subject to inflationary pressures. In particular, our financial performance is adversely affected by increases in these operating costs. In recent years, fuel prices have fluctuated widely, and previous increases in fuel prices increased our costs of operating vehicles and equipment. We cannot predict what effect recent global events or any future Middle East or other crisis could have on fuel prices, but it is possible that such events could lead to higher fuel prices. With respect to fuel, our Terminix fleet, which consumes approximately 11 million gallons annually, has been negatively impacted by significant increases in fuel prices in the past and could

be negatively impacted in the future. Although we hedge a significant portion of our fuel costs, we do not hedge all of those costs. In 2014, we expect to use approximately 11 million gallons of fuel. A ten percent change in fuel prices would result in a change of approximately \$4 million in our 2014 fuel cost before considering the impact of fuel swap contracts. Although based upon Department of Energy fuel price forecasts, as well as the hedges we have executed to date for 2014, we have projected that fuel prices will not significantly increase our per gallon fuel costs for 2014 compared to 2013, those forecasts and projections may not prove correct. Fuel price increases can also result in increases in the cost of chemicals and other materials used in our business. We cannot predict the extent to which we may experience future increases in costs of fuel, chemicals, refrigerants, appliances and equipment, parts, raw materials, wages and salaries, employee benefits, health care, vehicle, self-insurance costs and other insurance premiums as well as various regulatory compliance costs and other operating costs. To the extent such costs increase, we may be prevented, in whole or in part, from passing these cost increases through to our existing and prospective customers, and the rates we pay to our subcontractors and suppliers may increase, any of which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

#### **Table of Contents**

We may not be able to attract and retain qualified key executives or transition smoothly to new leadership, which could adversely impact us and our businesses and inhibit our ability to operate and grow successfully.

The execution of our business strategy and our financial performance will continue to depend in significant part on our executive management team and other key management personnel and the smooth transition of new senior leadership. We have recently enhanced our senior management team, including through the hiring of Robert J. Gillette as Chief Executive Officer and Alan J. M. Haughie as Chief Financial Officer. Any inability to attract in a timely manner other qualified key executives, retain our leadership team and recruit other important personnel could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Our franchisees and third-party distributors and vendors could take actions that could harm our business.

For the quarter ended March 31, 2014, and the year ended December 31, 2013, \$33 million and \$137 million, respectively, of our consolidated operating revenue was received in the form of franchise revenues. Accordingly, our financial results are dependent in part upon the operational and financial success of our franchisees. Our franchisees, third-party distributors and vendors are contractually obligated to operate their businesses in accordance with the standards set forth in our agreements with them. Each franchising brand also provides training and support to franchisees. However, franchisees, third-party distributors and vendors are independent third parties that we do not control, and who own, operate and oversee the daily operations of their businesses. As a result, the ultimate success of any franchise operation rests with the franchisee. If franchisees do not successfully operate their businesses in a manner consistent with required standards, royalty payments to us will be adversely affected and our brands—image and reputation could be harmed, which in turn could adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Similarly, if third-party distributors and vendors do not successfully operate their businesses in a manner consistent with required laws, standards and regulations, we could be subject to claims from regulators or legal claims for the actions or omissions of such third-party distributors and vendors. In addition, our relationship with our franchisees, third-party distributors and vendors could become strained (including resulting in litigation) as we impose new standards or assert more rigorous enforcement practices of the existing required standards. These strains in our relationships or claims could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Disruptions or failures in our information technology systems could create liability for us or limit our ability to effectively monitor, operate and control our operations and adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Our information technology systems facilitate our ability to monitor, operate and control our operations. Changes or modifications to our information technology systems could cause disruption to our operations or cause challenges with respect to our compliance with laws, regulations or other applicable standards. As the development and implementation of our information technology systems (including our operating systems) evolve, we may elect to modify, replace or abandon certain technology initiatives, which could result in write-downs. For example, in February 2014, American Home Shield ceased efforts to deploy a new operating system that had been intended to improve customer relationship management capabilities and enhance its operations. We recorded an impairment charge of \$48 million in the first quarter of 2014 relating to this decision.

Any disruption in, capacity limitations, instability or failure to operate as expected of, our information technology systems, could, depending on the magnitude of the problem, adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows, including by limiting our capacity to monitor, operate and control our operations effectively. Failures of our information technology systems could also lead to violations of privacy laws, regulations, trade guidelines or practices related to our customers and associates. If our disaster recovery plans do not work as anticipated, or if the third-party vendors to which we have outsourced certain information technology, contact center or other services fail to

fulfill their obligations to us, our operations may be adversely impacted, and any of these circumstances could adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Changes in the services we deliver or the products we use could impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows and our future plans.

Our financial performance is affected by changes in the services and products we offer our customers. For example, Terminix has been developing new products relating to mosquito control and wildlife exclusion. In addition, in the second quarter of 2014, our ServiceMaster Restore and AmeriSpec teams intend to introduce InstaScope, a new, proprietary technology for instant mold detection and water categorization. There can be no assurance that our new strategies or product

#### Table of Contents

offerings will succeed in increasing operating revenue and growing profitability. An unsuccessful execution of new strategies, including the rollout or adjustment of our new services or products or sales and marketing plans, could cause us to re-evaluate or change our business strategies and could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows and our future plans.

If we fail to protect the security of personal information about our customers, we could be subject to interruption of our business operations, private litigation, reputational damage and costly penalties.

We rely on, among other things, commercially available systems, software, tools and monitoring to provide security for processing, transmission and storage of confidential customer information, such as payment card and personal information. The systems currently used for transmission and approval of payment card transactions, and the technology utilized in payment cards themselves, all of which can put payment card data at risk, are central to meeting standards set by the payment card industry (PCI). We continue to evaluate and modify our systems and protocols for PCI compliance purposes, and such PCI standards may change from time to time. Activities by third parties, advances in computer and software capabilities and encryption technology, new tools and discoveries and other events or developments may facilitate or result in a compromise or breach of our systems. Any compromises, breaches or errors in applications related to our systems or failures to comply with standards set by the PCI could cause damage to our reputation and interruptions in our operations, including our customers—ability to pay for our services and products by credit card or their willingness to purchase our services and products and could result in a violation of applicable laws, regulations, orders, industry standards or agreements and subject us to costs, penalties and liabilities which could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights that are material to our business.

Our ability to compete effectively depends in part on our rights to service marks, trademarks, trade names and other intellectual property rights we own or license, particularly our registered brand names, ServiceMaster, Terminix, American Home Shield, ServiceMaster Restore, ServiceMaster Clean, Merry Maids, Furniture Medic and AmeriSpec. We have not sought to register or protect every one of our marks either in the United States or in every country in which they are or may be used. Furthermore, because of the differences in foreign trademark, patent and other intellectual property or proprietary rights laws, we may not receive the same protection in other countries as we would in the United States. If we are unable to protect our proprietary information and brand names, we could suffer a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights and protect our proprietary information, or to defend against claims by third parties that our products, services or activities infringe their intellectual property rights.

Future acquisitions or other strategic transactions could impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We may pursue strategic transactions in the future, which could involve acquisitions or dispositions of businesses or assets. Any future strategic transaction could involve integration or implementation challenges, business disruption or other risks, or change our business profile significantly. Any inability on our part to consolidate and manage growth from acquired businesses or successfully implement other strategic transactions could have an adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Any acquisition that we make may not provide us with the benefits that were anticipated when entering into such acquisition. The process of integrating an acquired business may create unforeseen difficulties and expenses, including the diversion of resources needed to integrate new businesses, technologies, products, personnel or systems; the inability to retain associates, customers and suppliers; the assumption of actual or contingent

liabilities (including those relating to the environment); failure to effectively and timely adopt and adhere to our internal control processes and other policies; write-offs or impairment charges relating to goodwill and other intangible assets; unanticipated liabilities relating to acquired businesses; and potential expense associated with litigation with sellers of such businesses. Any future disposition transactions could also impact our business and may subject us to various risks, including failure to obtain appropriate value for the disposed businesses, post-closing claims being levied against us and disruption to our other businesses during the sale process or thereafter.

Laws and government regulations applicable to our businesses and legal proceeding and investigations could increase our legal and regulatory expenses, and impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Our businesses are subject to significant international, federal, state, provincial and local laws and regulations. These laws and regulations include laws relating to consumer protection, wage and hour requirements, franchising, the employment

#### Table of Contents

of immigrants, labor relations, permitting and licensing, building code requirements, workers—safety, the environment, insurance and home warranties, employee benefits, marketing (including, without limitation, telemarketing) and advertising, the application and use of pesticides and other chemicals. In particular, we anticipate that various international, federal, state, provincial and local governing bodies may propose additional legislation and regulation that may be detrimental to our business or may substantially increase our operating costs, including proposed legislation, such as the Employee Free Choice Act, the Paycheck Fairness Act and the Arbitration Fairness Act; environmental regulations related to chemical use, climate change, equipment efficiency standards, refrigerant production and use and other environmental matters; other consumer protection laws or regulations; health care coverage; or do-not-knock, do-not-mail, do-not-leave or other marketing regulations. It is difficult to predict the future impact of the broad and expanding legislative and regulatory requirements affecting our businesses and changes to such requirements may adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, if we were to fail to comply with any applicable law or regulation, we could be subject to substantial fines or damages, be involved in litigation or governmental investigations, suffer losses to our reputation or suffer the loss of licenses or incur penalties that may affect how our business is operated, which, in turn, could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In April 2014, the CFPB issued a CID to American Home Shield seeking documents and information to determine whether home warranty providers or other unnamed persons have engaged or are engaging in unlawful acts and practices in connection with referral arrangements and relationships in violation of RESPA and other laws enforceable by the CFPB. American Home Shield intends to comply with its obligations to respond to the CID and believes that it has complied with RESPA and other laws applicable to American Home Shield s home warranty business. If the CFPB determines to bring an enforcement action, it could include demands for money penalties, changes to certain of American Home Shield s business practices and customer restitution or disgorgement.

Public perceptions that the products we use and the services we deliver are not environmentally friendly or safe may adversely impact the demand for our services.

In providing our services, we use, among other things, pesticides and other chemicals. Public perception that the products we use and the services we deliver are not environmentally friendly or safe or are harmful to humans or animals, whether justified or not, or our improper application of these chemicals, could reduce demand for our services, increase regulation or government restrictions or actions, result in fines or penalties, impair our reputation, involve us in litigation, damage our brand names and otherwise have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Compliance with, or violation of, environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including laws pertaining to the use of pesticides could result in significant costs that adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

International, federal, state, provincial and local laws and regulations relating to environmental, health and safety matters affect us in several ways. In the United States, products containing pesticides generally must be registered with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, or the EPA, and similar state agencies before they can be sold or applied. The failure to obtain or the cancellation of any such registration, or the withdrawal from the market place of such pesticides, could have an adverse effect on our business, the severity of which would depend on the products involved, whether other products could be substituted and whether our competitors were similarly affected. The pesticides we use are manufactured by independent third parties and are evaluated by the EPA as part of its ongoing exposure risk assessment. The EPA may decide that a pesticide we use will be limited or will not be re- registered for use in the United States. We cannot predict the outcome or the severity of the effect of the EPA s continuing evaluations.

In addition, the use of certain pesticide products is regulated by various international, federal, state, provincial and local environmental and public health agencies. Although we strive to comply with such regulations and have processes in place designed to achieve compliance, given our dispersed locations, distributed operations and numerous associates, we may be unable to prevent violations of these or other regulations from occurring. Even if we are able to comply with all such regulations and obtain all necessary registrations and licenses, the pesticides or other products we apply or use, or the manner in which we apply or use them, could be alleged to cause injury to the environment, to people or to animals, or such products could be banned in certain circumstances. The regulations may also apply to third-party vendors who are hired to repair or remediate property and who may fail to comply with environmental laws, health and safety regulations and subject us to risk of legal exposure. The costs of compliance, non-compliance, remediation, combating unfavorable public perceptions or defending products liability lawsuits could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

International, federal, state, provincial and local agencies regulate the disposal, handling and storage of waste, discharges from our facilities and the investigation and clean-up of contaminated sites. We could incur significant costs, including investigation and clean-up costs, fines, penalties and civil or criminal sanctions and claims by third parties for property damage and personal injury, as a result of violations of, or liabilities under, these laws and regulations. In addition, potentially significant expenditures could be required to comply with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including requirements that may be adopted or imposed in the future.

#### **Table of Contents**

We are subject to various restrictive covenants that could adversely impact our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

From time to time, we enter into noncompetition agreements or other restrictive covenants (e.g., exclusivity, take or pay and non-solicitation), including in connection with business dispositions or strategic contracts, that restrict us from entering into lines of business or operating in certain geographic areas into which we may desire to expand our business. We also are subject to various non-solicitation and no-hire covenants that may restrict our ability to solicit potential customers or associates. If we do not comply with such restrictive covenants, or if a dispute arises regarding the scope and interpretation thereof, litigation could ensue, which could have an adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Further, to the extent that such restrictive covenants prevent us from taking advantage of business opportunities, our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows may be adversely impacted.

Our business process outsourcing initiatives have increased our reliance on third-party contractors and may expose our business to harm upon the termination or disruption of our third-party contractor relationships.

Our strategy to increase profitability, in part, by reducing our costs of operations includes the implementation of certain business process outsourcing initiatives. Any disruption, termination or substandard performance of these outsourced services, including possible breaches by third-party vendors of their agreements with us, could adversely affect our brands, reputation, customer relationships, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Also, to the extent a third-party outsourcing provider relationship is terminated, there is a risk that we may not be able to enter into a similar agreement with an alternate provider in a timely manner or on terms that we consider favorable, and even if we find an alternate provider, or choose to insource such services, there are significant risks associated with any transitioning activities. In addition, to the extent we decide to terminate outsourcing services and insource such services, there is a risk that we may not have the capabilities to perform these services internally, resulting in a disruption to our business, which could adversely impact our reputation, business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. We could incur costs, including personnel and equipment costs, to insource previously outsourced services like these, and these costs could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows.

In addition, when a third-party provider relationship is terminated, there is a risk of disputes or litigation and that we may not be able to enter into a similar agreement with an alternate provider in a timely manner or on terms that we consider favorable, and even if we find an alternate provider, there are significant risks associated with any transitioning activities.

Our future success depends on our ability to attract, retain and maintain positive relations with trained workers and third-party contractors.

Our future success and financial performance depend substantially on our ability to attract, train and retain workers, attract and retain third-party contractors and ensure third-party contractor compliance with our policies and standards. Our ability to conduct our operations is in part impacted by our ability to increase our labor force, including on a seasonal basis, which may be adversely impacted by a number of factors. In the event of a labor shortage, we could experience difficulty in delivering our services in a high-quality or timely manner and could be forced to increase wages in order to attract and retain associates, which would result in higher operating costs and reduced profitability. New election rules by the National Labor Relations Board, including expedited elections and restrictions on appeals, could lead to increased organizing activities at our subsidiaries or franchisees. If these labor organizing activities were successful, it could further increase labor costs, decrease operating efficiency and productivity in the future, or otherwise disrupt or negatively impact our operations. In addition, potential competition from key associates who leave ServiceMaster could impact our ability to maintain our market segment share in certain geographic areas.

#### Risks Related to Our Substantial Indebtedness

We have substantial indebtedness and may incur substantial additional indebtedness, which could adversely affect our financial health and our ability to obtain financing in the future, react to changes in our business and satisfy our obligations.

As of March 31, 2014, we had \$3,904 million of total long-term consolidated indebtedness outstanding. In anticipation of the TruGreen Spin-off, on November 27, 2013, we entered into Amendment No. 3, or the 2013 Revolver Amendment, to the credit agreement governing our Revolving Credit Facility, or the Revolving Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the 2013 Revolver Amendment, we had, effective on January 14, 2014 upon completion of the TruGreen Spin-off, \$242 million of available borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Agreement through July 23, 2014 and \$183 million from July 24, 2014 through January 31, 2017. As of March 31, 2014, there were no outstanding borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility. In addition, we are able to incur additional indebtedness in the future, subject to the

## Table of Contents

	contained in the agreements governing our indebtedness. Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences to you. our substantial indebtedness:
•	our ability to engage in acquisitions without raising additional equity or obtaining additional debt financing is limited;
• corporate p	our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service requirements or general surposes and our ability to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness may be impaired in the future;
• thereby rec	a large portion of our cash flow from operations must be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our indebtedness, lucing the funds available to us for other purposes;
• certain floa	we are exposed to the risk of increased interest rates because a portion of our borrowings, including under the Credit Facilities, and ting rate operating and capital leases are at variable rates of interest;
• indebtedne	it may be more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations to our creditors, resulting in possible defaults on, and acceleration of, such ss;
•	we may be more vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
• indebtedne	we may be at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors with proportionately less indebtedness or with comparable ss on more favorable terms and, as a result, they may be better positioned to withstand economic downturns;
•	our ability to refinance indebtedness may be limited or the associated costs may increase;
•	our flexibility to adjust to changing market conditions and ability to withstand competitive pressures could be limited; and

we may be prevented from carrying out capital spending and restructurings that are necessary or important to our growth strategy and

efforts to improve operating margins of our businesses.

Increases in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our indebtedness and could reduce our profitability.

A significant portion of our outstanding indebtedness, including indebtedness under the Credit Facilities, bears interest at variable rates. As a result, increases in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our indebtedness and could materially reduce our profitability and cash flows. As of March 31, 2014, each one percentage point change in interest rates would result in an approximately \$22 million change in the annual interest expense on our Term Loan Facility. Assuming all revolving loans were fully drawn as of March 31, 2014, each one percentage point change in interest rates would result in an approximately \$2 million change in annual interest expense on our Revolving Credit Facility. The impact of increases in interest rates could be more significant for us than it would be for some other companies because of our substantial indebtedness.

A lowering or withdrawal of the ratings, outlook or watch assigned to our debt securities by rating agencies may increase our future borrowing costs and reduce our access to capital.

Our indebtedness currently has a non-investment grade rating, and any rating, outlook or watch assigned could be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in that rating agency s judgment, current or future circumstances relating to the basis of the rating, outlook, or watch such as adverse changes to our business, so warrant. Any future lowering of our ratings, outlook or watch likely would make it more difficult or more expensive for us to obtain additional debt financing.

The agreements and instruments governing our indebtedness contain restrictions and limitations that could significantly impact our ability to operate our business.

The Credit Facilities and the indenture governing our 2020 Notes contain covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of ServiceMaster and its subsidiaries to:

• incur additional indebtedness (including guarantees of other indebtedness);

## Table of Contents

	pay dividends to ServiceMaster, redeem stock, or make other restricted payments, including investments and, in the case of the Credit Facility, make acquisitions;
•	prepay, repurchase or amend the terms of certain outstanding indebtedness;
•	enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;
•	transfer or sell assets;
•	create liens;
•	merge, consolidate or sell all or substantially all of our assets; and
•	enter into agreements restricting dividends or other distributions by subsidiaries to ServiceMaster.
indebtedne execute our obligations	tions in the indenture governing the 2020 Notes, the Credit Facilities and the instruments governing ServiceMaster s other ss may prevent us from taking actions that we believe would be in the best interest of our business and may make it difficult for us to a business strategy successfully or effectively compete with companies that are not similarly restricted. We may also incur future debt that might subject us to additional restrictive covenants that could affect our financial and operational flexibility. We may be unable to our indebtedness, at maturity or otherwise, on terms acceptable to us, or at all.
instruments credit or ca lenders or r unpaid inte proceed ag- be able to r	to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in the Credit Facilities, the indenture governing the 2020 Notes, and the s governing our other indebtedness may be affected by economic, financial and industry conditions beyond our control including pital market disruptions. The breach of any of these covenants or restrictions could result in a default that would permit the applicable noteholders, as the case may be, to declare all amounts outstanding thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and rest. If we are unable to repay indebtedness, lenders having secured obligations, such as the lenders under the Credit Facilities, could ainst the collateral securing the indebtedness. In any such case, we may be unable to borrow under the Credit Facilities and may not epay the amounts due under the Credit Facilities or our other outstanding indebtedness. This could have serious consequences to our ostition and results of operations and could cause us to become bankrupt or insolvent.

Our ability to generate the significant amount of cash needed to pay interest and principal on our indebtedness and our ability to refinance

all or a portion of our indebtedness or obtain additional financing depends on many factors beyond our control.

ServiceMaster is a holding company, and as such it has no independent operations or material assets other than ownership of equity interests in its respective subsidiaries. ServiceMaster depends on its subsidiaries to distribute funds to it so that it may pay obligations and expenses, including satisfying obligations with respect to indebtedness. Our ability to make scheduled payments on, or to refinance our obligations under, our indebtedness depends on the financial and operating performance of our subsidiaries, and their ability to make distributions and dividends to us, which, in turn, depends on their results of operations, cash flows, cash requirements, financial position and general business conditions and any legal and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends to which they may be subject, many of which may be beyond our control.

There are third-party restrictions on the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to transfer funds to us. If we cannot receive sufficient distributions from our subsidiaries, we may not be able to meet our obligations to fund general corporate expenses or service our debt obligations. These restrictions are related to regulatory requirements at American Home Shield and to a subsidiary borrowing arrangement at SMAC. The payment of ordinary and extraordinary dividends by our home warranty and similar subsidiaries (through which we conduct our American Home Shield business) are subject to significant regulatory restrictions under the laws and regulations of the states in which they operate. Among other things, such laws and regulations require certain such subsidiaries to maintain minimum capital and net worth requirements and may limit the amount of ordinary and extraordinary dividends and other payments that these subsidiaries can pay to us. As of March 31, 2014, the total net assets subject to these third-party restrictions was \$184 million. Such limitations will be in effect through the end of 2014, and similar limitations are expected to be in effect in 2015.

We may be unable to maintain a level of cash flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal and interest on our indebtedness. If our cash flow and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets, seek to obtain additional equity capital or

#### Table of Contents

restructure our indebtedness. In the future, our cash flow and capital resources may not be sufficient for payments of interest on and principal of our indebtedness, and such alternative measures may not be successful and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations.

The \$2,184 million of outstanding borrowings under the Term Facilities, after including the unamortized portion of the original issue discount paid, have a maturity date of January 31, 2017. The Revolving Credit Facility is also scheduled to mature on January 31, 2017. The 8% 2020 Notes will mature on February 15, 2020, and the 7% 2020 Notes will mature on August 15, 2020. We may be unable to refinance any of our indebtedness or obtain additional financing, particularly because of our high levels of indebtedness. Market disruptions, such as those experienced in 2008 and 2009, as well as our significant indebtedness levels, may increase our cost of borrowing or adversely affect our ability to refinance our obligations as they become due. If we are unable to refinance our indebtedness or access additional credit, or if short-term or long-term borrowing costs dramatically increase, our ability to finance current operations and meet our short-term and long- term obligations could be adversely affected.

If we cannot make scheduled payments on our indebtedness, we will be in default, holders of the 2020 Notes could declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable, the lenders under the Credit Facilities could terminate their commitments to loan money, the secured lenders could foreclose against the assets securing their borrowings and we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.

#### Risks Related to the TruGreen Spin-off

If the TruGreen Spin-off were ultimately determined to be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes, then we could be subject to significant tax liability.

In connection with the TruGreen Spin-off we received an opinion of tax counsel with respect to the tax-free nature of the TruGreen Spin-off to Holdings and Holdings stockholders under Section 355 and related provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). The opinion relied on an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) private letter ruling as to matters covered by the ruling. The tax opinion was based on, among other things, certain assumptions and representations as to factual matters made by us, which, if incorrect or inaccurate in any material respect, would jeopardize the conclusions reached by tax counsel in its opinion. The opinion is not binding on the IRS or the courts, and the IRS or the courts may not agree with the opinion. If the TruGreen Spin-off were ultimately determined not to be tax-free, we could be liable for the U.S. federal income taxes imposed as a result of the transaction. Furthermore, events subsequent to the TruGreen Spin-off could cause us to recognize a taxable gain in connection therewith. In addition, as is customary with tax-free spin-off transactions, we and our equity sponsors are limited in our ability to pursue certain strategic transactions with respect to ServiceMaster.

Federal and state fraudulent transfer laws and Delaware corporate law may permit a court to void the TruGreen Spin-off, which would adversely affect our financial condition and our results of operations.

In connection with the TruGreen Spin-off, we undertook several corporate restructuring transactions which, along with the contributions and distributions to be made as part of the spin-off, may be subject to challenge under federal and state fraudulent conveyance and transfer laws as well as under Delaware corporate law.

Under applicable laws, any transaction, contribution or distribution completed as part of the spin-off could be voided as a fraudulent transfer or conveyance if, among other things, the transferor received less than reasonably equivalent value or fair consideration in return and was insolvent or rendered insolvent by reason of the transfer.

We cannot be certain as to the standards a court would use to determine whether or not any entity involved in the spin-off was insolvent at the relevant time. In general, however, a court would look at various facts and circumstances related to the entity in question, including evaluation of whether or not:

- the sum of its debts, including contingent and unliquidated liabilities, was greater than the fair saleable value of all of its assets;
- the present fair saleable value of its assets was less than the amount that would be required to pay its probable liability on its existing debts, including contingent liabilities, as they become absolute and mature; or
- it could not pay its debts as they became due.

#### Table of Contents

If a court were to find that any transaction, contribution or distribution involved in the spin-off was a fraudulent transfer or conveyance, the court could void the transaction, contribution or distribution. In addition, the spin-off could also be voided if a court were to find that the spin-off was not a legal dividend under Delaware corporate law. The resulting complications, costs and expenses of either finding could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our directors and officers may have actual or potential conflicts of interest because of their equity ownership in New TruGreen.

Directors and officers of ServiceMaster and Holdings may own shares of New TruGreen s common stock or be affiliated with certain equity owners of New TruGreen. This ownership may create, or may create the appearance of, conflicts of interest when these directors and officers are faced with decisions that could have different implications for us and New TruGreen. In connection with the TruGreen Spin-off, we entered into a transition services agreement with New TruGreen under which we will provide a range of support services to New TruGreen for a limited period of time. Potential conflicts of interest could arise in connection with the resolution of any dispute that may arise between us and New TruGreen regarding the terms of the transition services agreement or other agreements governing the TruGreen Spin-off and the relationship thereafter between the companies.

#### ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.	Description of Exhibit
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 31, 2013, by and between The ServiceMaster Company and The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 17, 2014 (File No. 001-14762 (the 2014 8-K)).
2.2	Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, by and among ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc., The ServiceMaster Company, TruGreen Holding Corporation and TruGreen Limited Partnership, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the 2014 8-K.
2.3	Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, by and among ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc., The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, TruGreen Limited Partnership and TruGreen Holding Corporation, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 of the 2014 8-K.
2.4	Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, by and among ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc., The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, TruGreen Holding Corporation and TruGreen Limited Partnership, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 of the 2014 8-K.
2.5	Transition Services Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, by and between The ServiceMaster Company, LLC and TruGreen Limited Partnership, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 of the 2014 8-K.
4.1	Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as January 14, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as Trustee is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 2014 8-K.
4.2	Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as January 14, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as Trustee is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the 2014 8-K.

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 14, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (as successor to Harris Trust and Savings Bank), as Trustee is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the 2014 8-K.

10.1# Termination of Indemnification Agreement, dated as of March 21, 2014, by Banc of America Capital Investors V, L.P., BAS Capital Funding Corporation, BACSVM, L.P., Banc of America Strategic Investments Corporation, Banc of America Capital Management V, L.P., BACM I GP, LLC and BA Equity Co-Invest GP LLC.

53

## Table of Contents

10.2#	Indemnification Agreement, dated as of March 21, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc. and Ridgemont Partners Management, LLC.
10.3#	Amendment No. 2 to Consulting Agreement, dated as of March 21, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc., BAS Capital Funding Corporation and Ridgemont Partners Management, LLC.
10.4#	Consulting Agreement, dated March 21, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc. and Ridgemont Partners Management, LLC.
10.5#	Employee Stock Option Agreement for Mark J. Barry dated as of March 18, 2014.
10.6	Term Loan Credit Agreement Joinder Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other parties thereto is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 2014 8-K.
10.7	Assumption Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, by SMCS Holdco, Inc. and SMCS Holdco II, Inc., in favor of Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent and collateral agent for the banks and other financial institutions from time to time parties to the Credit Agreement referred to therein and the other Secured Parties (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the 2014 8-K.
10.8	Revolving Credit Agreement Joinder Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, among The ServiceMaster Company, The ServiceMaster Company, LLC, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other parties thereto is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 2014 8-K.
10.9	Assumption Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2014, by SMCS Holdco, Inc. and SMCS Holdco II, Inc., in favor of Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent and collateral agent for the banks and other financial institutions from time to time parties to the Revolving Credit Agreement referred to therein and the other Secured Parties (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the 2014 8-K.
10.10	Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2014, by and between Robert J. Gillette and ServiceMaster Global Holdings, Inc. is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 (File No. 001-14762).
31.1#	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 15d 14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2#	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 15d 14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1#	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2#	Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS#	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH#	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL#	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF#	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB#	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE#	XBRL Extension Presentation Linkbase

# Filed herewith.

54

## Table of Contents

#### **SIGNATURE**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 2, 2014

THE SERVICEMASTER COMPANY, LLC (Registrant)

By: /s/ Alan J. M. Haughie

Alan J. M. Haughie

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

55